
Welcome to this Public Meeting of the Hood River County School District Board of Directors
August 15, 2023 – 5:00 p.m. Nathaniel Coe Administration Center, 1011 Eugene St

5:00 PM I WORK SESSION
WELCOME & CALL TO ORDER
Board Chair: Chrissy Reitz, Vice-Chair: Brandi Sheppard;
Board Members: Julia Garcia-Ramirez, Barb Hosford, Jen Kelly, Dave Stuben, and Corinda Hankins Elliott.

Chrissy Reitz

5:01 PM II REVIEW/REVISION OF AGENDA Chrissy Reitz

5:02 PM III WORK SESSION
A. School Board - Superintendent Roles & Responsibilities
B. School Board - Superintendent Operating Agreements
C. Review and Propose Board Goals
D. Agreements for Board Meetings, Work Sessions & Executive Sessions
E. 2023-24 Board Committee Assignments
F. Superintendent’s Goals

Chrissy Reitz
Chrissy Reitz
Chrissy Reitz
Bill Newton
Bill Newton
Bill Newton

6:00 PM IV REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING Chrissy Reitz

6:00 PM V PUBLIC COMMENT/HEARING OF DELEGATIONS OR VISITORS Chrissy Reitz

6:30 PM VI CONSOLIDATED REPORTS Chrissy Reitz

6:31 PM VII CONSOLIDATED ACTION Chrissy Reitz

A. Regular Business Meeting Minutes - July 11, 2023
B. Regular Business Meeting Minutes - July 24, 2023
C. Human Resources Report/Personnel Action
D. Final Reading of Board Policy
E. Annual Appointments Update

Chrissy Reitz
Chrissy Reitz
Gus Hedberg
Gus Hedberg
Doug Holmes

6:32 PM VIII REPORTS & DISCUSSIONS

A. Announce Budget Committee Vacancies Doug Holmes

6:35 PM IX ACTION ITEMS

A. Approve Budget Calendar Doug Holmes

6:45 PM X BOARDMEMBER COMMENTS Chrissy Reitz

7:00 PM XI ADJOURN Chrissy Reitz



VISION: Excellence. Every Student. Every Day.

MISSION: Every student graduates with the knowledge and courage to learn, serve, and
pursue their dreams.

HOOD RIVER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING NORMS

● The Board and Superintendent will strive to have no surprises at board meetings
● Each board member has an opportunity to be heard
● Come prepared having read the information provided
● Stay engaged
● Discussions between members of the Board will serve as a model for positive and constructive public

dialogue
● Honor the right of individual members to express opposing viewpoints and vote their convictions
● Seek consensus
● Regardless of one’s vote, support the decision of the majority
● Respect executive session confidentiality

2022-2023 GOALS FOR THE HRCSD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Goal 1: Increase Academic Growth and Success
Ensuring high levels of academic growth for all students is the School Board’s core mission. To that end, the
Board has established high expectations for increased student performance as identified by the 2026 Strategic
Plan. To ensure improved outcomes for all students the Board will:

● prioritize and focus their efforts and energy on the 2026 Strategic Plan Goals and Key Indicators
● regularly monitor disaggregated student performance data
● hold themselves, the superintendent, and staff accountable for improved outcomes; and,
● advocate and support the need for improved learning to internal and external stakeholders

Goal 2: Improve and Maintain the Public Trust
Through the utilization of purposeful committee structures, open and transparent processes, and deliberate
opportunities for community involvement, the Board will ensure high levels of engagement from staff, parent
and stakeholder involvement representative of the district demographic prior to policy-level decision making.
To ensure that board improves and maintains public trust, the board will:

● Twice annually administer a comprehensive stakeholder survey aligned to the 2026 Strategic Plan;
● successfully pass a renewal of the operating levy.

Goal 3: Sound Fiscal Accountability and Transparency
Through transparent operations, shared accountability, and best-practice procedures, the Board will maintain
sound fiscal stewardship of financial resources consistent with board policies. To ensure fiscal accountability
and transparency the Board will:

● Adopt a sustainable budget that supports the priorities and goals in the 2026 Strategic Plan
● Maintain a minimum 8% ending fund balance by the end of the 2022-23 school.



● Conduct monthly Finance Advisory and Capital Project Oversight Committee meetings to review
revenues, expenditures and provide analysis of district financial operations.

Goal 4: Be a high-functioning Board team
The Board of Education, both individually and collectively, will consistently adhere to the Board Meeting
Agreements and the Board and Superintendent operating agreements. Board members will engage in at least
two (2) continuing education activities per school year. Board members will stay current on OSBA policy
changes and Oregon legislative activities that affect HRCSD.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN BOARD MEETINGS

● The Board is committed to providing an opportunity for Hood River County citizens to make public comments.
● Public comment will be scheduled at regular Board Meetings with a time limit of three minutes per speaker.
● Public comment at Board Meetings will be limited to a maximum of 30 minutes total. If public comment

exceeds 30 minutes, and speakers are unable to make public comment to the Board, please submit your public
comment by email to hrcsd.board@hoodriver.k12.or.us and will be reviewed by the board chair and
superintendent.

● The Board will listen, but not comment on information heard from the audience.  However, following the
meeting, the chair, vice chair and superintendent will together determine if the superintendent shall respond in a
public way, a private way or if the issue will be added to future board meeting or work session agendas.

● Speakers may offer objective criticism of district operations or programs, but the Board will not hear complaints
concerning specific district personnel. Any complaints must go through the chain of command as spelled out in
Policy KL (“Public Complaints”) and Procedure KL-AR (“Complaint Form”).

● The Board limits the public's participation to the public comment section of the agenda. There is no
cross-discussion between the Board and the public during other agenda items.

● All public comment should be directed respectfully to the Board through the Chair. Comments should not be
directed at any individual board member.

● Groups will be encouraged to appoint a spokesperson so the same issue is not repeated.   If a large group of
people wishes to discuss a specific topic, please designate one person to sign up to speak on behalf of the group.
The group may sit/stand together at the podium with the designated speaker.

● Each public speaker will identify themselves by name and county of residence, and will submit a google form
prior to 12pm the day before the meeting. Any questions around public comment please contact the board
secretary meghan.west@hoodriver.k12.or.us or 541-386-2511.

The Hood River County School District Board of Directors requests comments be limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. Speakers
will state their name and county of residence  for the record.  The Board appreciates community members sharing information during
public comments.  While the Board does not respond to public comment, following the meeting, the Chair, Vice Chair, and
Superintendent will together determine the appropriate level response. Speakers may offer objective criticism of district operations or
programs but the Board will not hear complaints concerning specific district personnel. If public comment exceeds 30 minutes, and
speakers are unable to make public comments to the board, please submit your public comment by email to
hrcsd.board@hoodriver.k12.or.us and they will be reviewed by the board chair and superintendent.

mailto:hrcsd.board@hoodriver.k12.or.us
mailto:meghan.west@hoodriver.k12.or.us
mailto:hrcsd.board@hoodriver.k12.or.us


DATE: August 15, 2023
TO: Board of Directors
FR: Bill Newton, Superintendent
RE: School Board - Superintendent Roles and Responsibilities

EXPLANATION:
Each year the Board and Superintendent review their roles and responsibilities and make any
necessary, collective edits. In this session the Board and Superintendent will review the
following areas: Board roles and responsibilities which includes the school board defined,
primary responsibilities, additional duties; collective authority of the board; individual board
members; authority of the board chair; role of the superintendent.

PRESENTERS: Bill Newton, Superintendent

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS: School Board - Superintendent Roles and Responsibilities

RECOMMENDATION: No recommendation

PROPOSED MOTION: No action needed



23-24 School Board-Superintendent Roles & Responsibilities

1. Board Roles & Responsibilities
a. School Board De�ned

i. School board members, although locally elected, are really state o�cials,
co-partners with the legislature. They are designated by school law to administer
the school system in each district.

ii. Constitutional recognition of public schools is a legislative function in which a
school district is described as a “unit of local government.”

iii. E�ective school boards concentrate their time and energy on determining what it
is the schools should accomplish and enacting/revising policies to carry out these
goals.

b. Primary Responsibilities
i. Planning -- The Board of Directors will engage in strategic planning. This is a

basic responsibility to the public electorate.
ii. Setting Policy -- The central responsibility of a board, both in theory and in law,

is to be the policy-forming body. Policy means actions of the Board that set
written goals and objectives for the schools and parameters for actions.

iii. Evaluating Results -- The Board must evaluate the results of planning.
Evaluation “completes the loop ” and, in fact, leads inevitably to more planning.
Evaluation occurs all the time, both formally and informally. As a group, the
Board is not an administrative body; neither should it be a “ rubber stamp ” for
professional educators.

iv. Hire/Evaluate the Superintendent -- The selection, review, and retention of a
competent chief executive is one of the Board's most important functions.

v. Listen to and Represent the community in its entirety.
c. Additional Duties

i. Enact rules and regulations governing the operation of the schools
ii. Enact rules and regulations governing student and employee behavior
iii. Adopt the budget and levy taxes
iv. Oversee district compliance with state and federal regulations
v. Oversee the construction, equipping, furnishing and maintenance of district

facilities and other capital resources
vi. Determine the compensation of employees
vii. Adopt instructional materials and prescribe courses of study

1



viii. Oversee operable student transportation systems
ix. Oversee the provision of food services for students
x. Acquire and manage real estate for school purposes
xi. Do other things necessary to carry out the duties and responsibilities assigned to

school boards by the State of Oregon

2. Collective Authority of the Board
a. A single board member has no authority to make decisions or take any actions
b. The Board’s authority comes from the power of the majority
c. The majority of the board can take action on any agenda item (properly identi�ed as an

“action item” prior to taking action)
d. The Board, by majority vote, hires the superintendent; the other licensed sta� members

(including administrators) are recommended to the school board by the superintendent
and must be approved or denied through formal Board action

e. Any licensed sta�, other than the superintendent, comes to the board for dismissal as a
recommendation from the superintendent. The Board takes action and then the collective
bargaining agreement and state laws are followed regarding appeals, etc.

f. Discipline of any employee, including appeals (other than that of the superintendent),
will be handled by the superintendent according to state law, district policy and the
collective bargaining agreement

g. The Board handles complaints concerning the superintendent in accordance with district
policy and contract agreements with relevant employee groups

h. The Board handles appeals about administrative action regarding student disciplinary
issues

3. Individual BoardMembers
a. A single board member has no authority to make decisions or take any actions.
b. When visiting schools, shall follow the same procedures for visitation as a parent or

community member. If visiting as a board member, the visit shall be planned in advance
with the Superintendent.

c. Will communicate with the Superintendent with ideas, solutions, concerns that he or she
would like considered for Board discussion or action.

d. Communication between board members is subject to public meeting laws and public
records requests. The Board will not conduct deliberations over email.

i. “Reply All’s” that include a quorum of BoardMembers is never appropriate.

4. Authority of the Board Chair
a. Singularly speaks, or will assign one other BoardMember or Superintendent to speak, on

behalf of the Board to the media with regard to Board policy and decisions.
b. Ensures that new board members are oriented to Board processes.
c. Ensures the Board follows its own “Operating Agreements.”
d. Works together with the Superintendent and Vice-Chair to develop e�cient agendas with

input from other Board members and the Superintendent, and encourages the

2



knowledgeable participation, thoughtful discussion, and e�ective decision-making on the
part of the Board as a whole.

e. Facilitates the Board meetings in a collaborative, focused and timely manner.

5. Role of the Superintendent
a. Is the Chief Executive of the school district.
b. Runs the daily operations of the school district.
c. Carries out policies established by the Board.
d. Assures sta� and programs are aligned to carry out the established mission/vision of the

district.
e. Assures sta� and programs are aligned to maximize student achievement and social

development.
f. Provides recommendations to the Board regarding all licensed and classi�ed

hires/terminations.
g. With other administrators, handles all sta� complaints and complaints regarding sta�

(with the exception of complaints against the superintendent).
h. All other duties as outlined in HRCSD Policy CBA

3



DATE: August 15, 2023
TO: Board of Directors
FR: Bill Newton, Superintendent
RE: School Board - Superintendent Operating Agreements

EXPLANATION:
Each year the Board and Superintendent review the operating agreements and make any necessary,
collective edits. The Board of Directors is the educational policy-making body for the Hood River
County School District. To e�ectively meet the district’s challenges, the school board and
superintendent must function together as a leadership team. To ensure unity among teammembers,
e�ective group agreements must be in place and in this session the Board and Superintendent will
review the current operating agreements that include: information requests, personnel issues,
communication with sta�/community, speaking with one voice, superintendent/board relations.

PRESENTERS: Bill Newton, Superintendent

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS: School Board - Superintendent Operating Agreements

RECOMMENDATION: No recommendation

PROPOSEDMOTION: No action needed



School Board-Superintendent Operating Agreements

Purpose
The Board of Directors is the educational policy-making body for the Hood River County School District. To
e�ectively meet the district’s challenges, the school board and Superintendent must function together as a
leadership team. To ensure unity among teammembers, e�ective group agreements must be in place. The
following are the group agreements for this leadership team.

Information Requests
● Individual board member requests for information will be directed only to the Superintendent. The

Superintendent will respond to general questions and inquiries.
● The Superintendent will determine how to proceed with board member requests that require sta�

work.
o If a request requires a large amount of sta� work, the request may be discussed with the Board

Chair and potentially added to a board agenda for the entire Board to determine if it is a good
use of sta� time.

Personnel Issues
● Board members recognize that they have one employee, the Superintendent.
● When board members have concerns, they will follow the chain of command and go through the

Superintendent.
o Board members will not make their own investigations.

● Board members recognize that they individually do not direct the sta�. They direct the
Superintendent as a full Board, and the Superintendent directs the district sta� members.

Communication With Sta� and the Community
● Board members are encouraged to visit schools. Such visits shall be planned in advance with the

Superintendent. They will wear their district assigned identi�cation badge when visiting in their
capacity as school board members.

● Board members may visit schools as a parent or volunteer. They will sign in at the o�ce and ask for a
visitor badge.

● In talking with sta� and the community, board members will be sensitive to any open-ended or
informal questions

● Prior to utilizing social media, board members will strive to recognize how others may perceive their
online presence across the communities they serve.

1



Speaking with One Voice
● Board members will voice their concerns about any agenda items, or about processes and procedures,

during a public meeting before the �nal vote is taken.
● Board members will publicly support decisions of the majority after honoring the right of individual

members to express opposing viewpoints and vote their convictions.
● Board members will show respect for all, including fellow board members, sta� and the community.
● Only the Board Chair speaks, or will assign one board member or the Superintendent to speak, on

behalf of the Board to the media with regard to Board policy and decisions.
● The Superintendent (his/her designee) is expected to communicate with the media and notify the

Board when responses pertain to board work.

Superintendent and Board Relations
● Board Leadership (the Board Chair and Vice Chair) will meet regularly and consistently with the

Superintendent (minimally twice monthly) to plan BoardMeeting agendas and strategize on how to
address key issues.

● Board members will remind one another in a respectful manner when a member is violating an
agreement.

● The Superintendent and board members will be open to feedback and respond respectfully.
● The Superintendent will provide the Board with a regular report on district progress and matters of

importance.
● The Board and Superintendent will review, revise and recommit to these agreements annually.

Superintendent and Board Communication
● Board Leadership and the Superintendent will together determine timelines to make certain that all

members of the Board are made aware of responses to public comment at meetings, emails to the board
and/or media requests.

● The Superintendent will communicate with the Board in a timely manner about issues of concern to
the district. Board members will give feedback to the Superintendent if they feel adjustments are
needed.

2



DATE: August 15, 2023
TO: Board of Directors
FR: Bill Newton, Superintendent
RE: School Board Goals

EXPLANATION:
Each year the school board sets collective board goals. These goals drive the work of the
Superintendent and district sta�. In this discussion the Board will review and discuss a draft of the
goals for the upcoming 2023-24 school year.

PRESENTERS: Bill Newton, Superintendent

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS: School Board Goals

RECOMMENDATION: No recommendation

PROPOSEDMOTION: No action needed



2023-2024 Goals for the HRCSD Board of Directors
Goal 1: Increase Academic Growth and Success
Ensuring high levels of academic growth for all students is the School Board’s core mission. To that
end, the Board has established high expectations for increased student performance as identi�ed by the
2026 Strategic Plan. To ensure improved outcomes for all students the Board will:

● prioritize and focus their e�orts and energy on the 2026 Strategic Plan Goals and Key
Indicators

● regularly monitor and analyze disaggregated student performance data and adjust when the
need is demonstrating a change.

● hold themselves, the superintendent, and sta� accountable for improved outcomes; and,

● advocate and support the need for improved learning to internal and external stakeholders

Goal 2: Improve and Maintain the Public Trust
Through the utilization of purposeful committee structures, open and transparent processes, and
deliberate opportunities for community involvement, the Board will ensure high levels of engagement
from sta�, parent and stakeholder involvement representative of the district demographic prior to
policy-level decision making. To ensure that board improves and maintains public trust, the board will:

● Twice annually administer a comprehensive stakeholder survey aligned to the 2026 Strategic
Plan;

● successfully renew the operating levy.
● Establish a capital projects fund for maintenance and capital upgrades.
● Advocate for students attending school on a regular basis (90% or better attendance rate).

Utilize all supports (families, community partners) to advocate for students attending school.

Goal 3: Sound Fiscal Accountability and Transparency
Through transparent operations, shared accountability, and best-practice procedures, the Board will
maintain sound �scal stewardship of �nancial resources consistent with board policies. To ensure �scal
accountability and transparency the Board will:

● Adopt a sustainable budget with more clarity that supports the priorities and goals in the 2026
Strategic Plan

● Maintain a minimum 8 5% ending fund balance by the end of the 2022-23 school.

1



● Conduct monthly Finance Advisory and Capital Project Oversight Committee meetings to
review revenues, expenditures and provide analysis of district �nancial operations.

Goal 4: Be a high-functioning Board team
The Hood River County School District Board of Education, both individually and collectively, will
consistently adhere to the Board Meeting Agreements and the Board and Superintendent operating
agreements. Board members will engage in at least two (2) continuing education activities per school
year. Board members will stay current on OSBA policy changes and Oregon legislative activities that
a�ect HRCSD.

2022-2023 Goals for the HRCSD Board of Directors
Goal 1: Increase Academic Growth and Success
Ensuring high levels of academic growth for all students is the School Board’s core mission. To that end, the
Board has established high expectations for increased student performance as identi�ed by the 2026 Strategic
Plan. To ensure improved outcomes for all students the Board will:

● prioritize and focus their e�orts and energy on the 2026 Strategic Plan Goals and Key Indicators

● regularly monitor disaggregated student performance data

● hold themselves, the superintendent, and sta� accountable for improved outcomes; and,

● advocate and support the need for improved learning to internal and external stakeholders

Goal 2: Improve and Maintain the Public Trust
Through the utilization of purposeful committee structures, open and transparent processes, and deliberate
opportunities for community involvement, the Board will ensure high levels of engagement from sta�, parent
and stakeholder involvement representative of the district demographic prior to policy-level decision making. To
ensure that board improves and maintains public trust, the board will:

● Twice annually administer a comprehensive stakeholder survey aligned to the 2026 Strategic Plan;
● successfully renew of the operating levy.

Goal 3: Sound Fiscal Accountability and Transparency

2



Through transparent operations, shared accountability, and best-practice procedures, the Board will maintain
sound �scal stewardship of �nancial resources consistent with board policies. To ensure �scal accountability and
transparency the Board will:

● Adopt a sustainable budget that supports the priorities and goals in the 2026 Strategic Plan
● Maintain a minimum 8% ending fund balance by the end of the 2022-23 school.
● Conduct monthly Finance Advisory and Capital Project Oversight Committee meetings to review

revenues, expenditures and provide analysis of district �nancial operations.

Goal 4: Be a high-functioning Board team
The Board of Education, both individually and collectively, will consistently adhere to the Board Meeting
Agreements and the Board and Superintendent operating agreements. Board members will engage in at least two
(2) continuing education activities per school year. Board members will stay current on OSBA policy changes
and Oregon legislative activities that a�ect HRCSD.

2021-22 Board Goals

Goal 1: Increase Academic Growth and Success
Ensuring high levels of academic growth for all students is the School Board’s core mission. To that
end, the Board has established high expectations for increased student performance as identi�ed by the
2026 Strategic Plan. To ensure improved outcomes for all students the Board will:

● prioritize and focus their e�orts and energy on the 2026 Strategic Plan Goals and Key
Indicators

● regularly monitor disaggregated student performance data

● hold themselves, the superintendent, and sta� accountable for improved outcomes; and,

● advocate and support the need for improved learning to internal and external stakeholders

Goal 2: Improve and Maintain the Public Trust
Through the utilization of purposeful committee structures, open and transparent processes, and
deliberate opportunities for community involvement, the Board will ensure high levels of sta�, parent
and stakeholder involvement prior to policy-level decision making as measured by a comprehensive
stakeholder survey administered and reviewed annually.

3



Goal 3: Sound Fiscal Accountability and Transparency
Through transparent operations, shared accountability, and best-practice procedures, the Board will
maintain sound �scal stewardship of �nancial resources consistent with board policies. To ensure �scal
accountability and transparency the Board will:

● Adopt a sustainable budget that supports the priorities and goals in the 2026 Strategic Plan
● Maintain a minimum 8% ending fund balance by the end of the 2021-22 school.
● Conduct monthly Finance Advisory and Bond Oversight Committee meetings to review

revenues, expenditures and provide analysis of district �nancial operations.

Goal 4: Be a high-functioning Board team
The Board of Education, both individually and collectively, will consistently adhere to the Board
Meeting Agreements and the Board and Superintendent operating agreements. Board members will
engage in at least two (2) continuing education activities per school year. Board members will stay
current on OSBA policy changes and Oregon legislative activities that a�ect HRCSD.

4



DATE: August 15, 2023
TO: Board of Directors
FR: Bill Newton, Superintendent
RE: 2023-24 Agreements for Board Meetings, Work Session

EXPLANATION:
Each year the Board and Superintendent review the agreements for board meetings, work
sessions and executive sessions, and make any necessary, collective edits. In this session the
Board and Superintendent will review the following areas: general board meeting and work
session agendas, before meetings, norms for public meetings, procedural safeguards for board
meetings, public comment; executive sessions.

PRESENTERS: Bill Newton, Superintendent

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS: 2023-24 Agreements for Board Meetings, Work Session

RECOMMENDATION: No recommendation

PROPOSED MOTION: No action needed



Agreements for Board Meetings, Work Sessions, and Executive Sessions

General Board Meeting &Work Session Agendas
● The Board Chair, Vice Chair and Superintendent will set the board agenda.
● Individual board members may request that items be added to the agenda by contacting the

Superintendent or Board Chair or discussing their desire in public session.
● Items will not be added to the current agenda by individual board members unless the majority of the

present board members vote to approve the addition at the meeting.
● The Board and Superintendent will seek to include multiple perspectives on agenda items of key

concern for the community in order to provide for balanced conversation.

Before Meetings
● Board members will come prepared for the meeting by having read all packet materials. If additional

items are provided during the meeting, the Board will take time to review them before voting.
● Always abstain from conducting Board business or decision-making outside of board meetings or

executive sessions.
● The board packet will normally be e-mailed to board members on the Friday before regularly scheduled

board meetings. The Board will be noti�ed if there is a delay.
● Board members will notify the Superintendent and/or the Board Administrative Assistant 48 hours in

advance of a scheduled board meeting if they are unable to attend the meeting.
o In the event of an emergency or an unforeseen event that will not allow a Board member to

attend a meeting, notice will be given to the Board Secretary as early as possible prior to the
meeting.

● Board members will contact the Superintendent prior to meetings with any questions on agenda items.
o When an individual board member asks the Superintendent a substantive question about an

agenda item, the response will be shared with all board members.

Norms for Public Meetings
● The Board and Superintendent will strive to have no surprises at board meetings
● Each board member has an opportunity to be heard
● Come prepared having read the information provided
● Stay engaged
● Discussions between members of the Board will serve as a model for positive and constructive public

dialogue

1



● Honor the right of individual members to express opposing viewpoints and vote their convictions
● Seek consensus
● Regardless of one’s vote, support the decision of the majority
● Respect executive session con�dentiality

Procedural Safeguards for Board Meetings
The Superintendent will act as parliamentarian at board meetings to help ensure each

motion is clear and there is no missing or misunderstood information.

The Board will not vote on agenda items not listed as “Action Items,” unless it is
considered an emergency. In emergency situations, Board Policy BF will be followed.

Members of the public will be given an opportunity in public session to express
opinions prior to the board taking a vote.

Board members will strive to show respect at board meetings and refrain from surprising or
embarrassing other board members, administrators, sta� members or the audience.

Uphold the con�dentiality requirement of BoardMeeting Executive Sessions.

Public Comment
1. We are committed to providing an opportunity for Hood River County citizens to make public

comments.
2. Public comment will be scheduled at regular BoardMeetings with a time limit of three minutes per

speaker.
3. Public comment at BoardMeetings agenda item will be limited to a maximum of 30 minutes total.
4. Public comment should be just that, and NOT a discussion with the Board. The Board will not

answer questions on the spot or engage with the public, but could refer questions to the
administration or board chair for answer at a later time.

5. The Board should clearly state that they will not hear complaints against individuals in public, and
that all complaints must go through the chain of command as spelled out in Policy KL (“Public
Complaints”) and Procedure KL-AR (“Complaint Form”). This statement shall be made in writing
on the agenda, or by the board chair as an announcement at the beginning of the public comment
session. For example:

“The Hood River County School District Board of Directors requests comments be
limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. Speakers will state their name and county for
the record. The Board appreciates community members sharing information during
public comments. While the Board does not respond to public comment, following the
meeting, the Chair, Vice Chair, and Superintendent will together determine the
appropriate level response. Speakers may offer objective criticism of district operations or

2



programs but the Board will not hear complaints concerning specific district personnel. If
public comment exceeds 30 minutes, and speakers are unable to make public comment to
the board, please submit your public comment by email to
hrcsd.board@hoodriver.k12.or.us and will be reviewed by the board chair and
superintendent.

6. The Board should limit the public's participation to the public comment section of the agenda.
There should not be cross-discussion between the Board and the public during other agenda items.

7. All public comment should be directed respectfully to the Board through the Chair. Comments
should not be directed at any individual board member.

8. The Board will clearly explain the 'rules' for public comment in writing on the meeting agenda and
verbally by the chair at the start of the public comment section of the meeting. Example:

Example: “The Board appreciates community members sharing information during
public comments. The Board will listen, but not comment on information we hear
from the audience. However, following the meeting, the chair, vice chair and
superintendent will together determine if the superintendent shall respond in a public
way, a private way or if the issue will be added to future board meeting or work session
agendas.”

9. Public input will be limited to three minutes per person unless explicitly adjusted for a particular
meeting by the Chair with a maximum of 30 minutes total.

10. Groups will be encouraged to appoint a spokesperson so the same issue is not repeated. If a large
group of people wishes to discuss a speci�c topic, please designate one person to sign up to speak on
behalf of the group.

11. Each public speaker will identify themselves by name and county of residence, and will submit an
electronic form with basic contact information to the Board Secretary 36 hours prior to the
scheduled meeting.

EXECUTIVE SESSIONS
The Board may meet in executive session to discuss subjects allowed by statute but may not take �nal action,
except for speci�c instances pertaining to student matters. Executive sessions may be held during regular,
special or emergency meetings for any reason permitted by law.

Content discussed in executive sessions is con�dential. Members of the media may attend executive sessions,
except in speci�c instances (Board Policy BDC).

The Board may be called to meet in executive session or decide to go into executive session at any time during
a regular, special or emergency meeting to discuss certain matters. By Oregon law, the chair may call a Board
into executive session without a vote of the Board.

3

mailto:hrcsd.board@hoodriver.k12.or.us


Whenever an executive session is called, the presiding o�cer must identify the section and subsection of ORS
192.660 (listed reasons) or 332.061 (expulsion or medical records of a minor student) that authorize the
executive session's purpose.

Purposes for which executive sessionmay be called:
● To consider the employment of a public o�cer, employee, sta� member or individual agent. ORS

192.660(2)(a)
● To consider the dismissal or disciplining of, or to hear complaints or charges brought against, a

public o�cer, employee, sta� member or agent, unless he or she requests an open meeting. ORS
192.660(2)(b)

● To conduct deliberations with persons designated to carry on labor negotiations. ORS 192.660(2)(d)
● To conduct deliberations to negotiate real property transactions. ORS 192.660(2)(e)
● To consider records exempt by law from public inspection. ORS 192.660(2)(f)
● To consult with counsel concerning current or possible litigation. ORS 192.660(2)(h)
● To review and evaluate the performance of the superintendent or any other public o�cer, employee

or sta� member, unless that person requests an open hearing. ORS 192.660(2)(i)
● Conduct a hearing on the expulsion of a student or to review a student's con�dential medical

records. ORS 332.061(1)

Boards may nevermeet in executive session to conduct the following business:
● Fill a vacancy in an elective o�ce
● Fill a vacancy on any public committee, commission or other advisory group
● Consider general employment policies
● Discuss an employee's performance, unless that employee has been noti�ed and has been given the

option of having the discussion held in public
● Hire the superintendent or any other employee if the vacancy has not been advertised, hiring

procedures have not been adopted by the board, and there has been no opportunity for public input
about the hiring

4



DATE: August 15, 2023
TO: Board of Directors
FR: Bill Newton, Superintendent
RE: School Board Committee Assignments

EXPLANATION:
Board members will discuss their desire to participate on a number of workgroups / committees
during the 2023-24 school year.

PRESENTERS: Bill Newton, Superintendent

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS: 2023-24 School Board Committee Assignments

RECOMMENDATION: No recommendation

PROPOSED MOTION: No action needed



2023-24 Committee Assignment

*Financial Advisory & Capital Project Oversight Committee – Organizer: Doug Holmes
● Monthly; Thursdays; 4pm – 5:30pm

o 2018-19: Julia, Rich, Chrissy
o 2019-20: Chrissy, Rich T., David
o 2020-21: Chrissy, Rich T., Julia
o 2021-22: Chrissy, Jen K.
o 2022-23: Chrissy, Jen K.
o 2023-24:

School District Policy Committee – Organizer: Catherine Dalbey
● Quarterly; Time Very Flexible

o 2018-19: Tom, Julia
o 2019-20: Corinda, Julia
o 2020-21: Corinda, Brandi
o 2021-22: Corinda, Barb H., Julia,
o 2022-23: Corinda, Barb H., Brandi
o 2023-24:

ESD Budget Committee - Organizer: Pat Sublette
● One evening in Spring

o 2018-19: Brandi, Corinda
o 2019-20: Brandi, Corinda
o 2020-21: Brandi, Corinda
o 2021-22: Corinda
o 2022-23: Julia, Tom
o 2023-24:

Hood River County Education Foundation - Organizer: Meleah Bauman
● Monthly, Monday evenings

o 2018-19: Chrissy, Brandi
o 2019-20: Chrissy, Brandi
o 2020-21: Chrissy, Julia
o 2021-22: Chrissy
o 2022-23: Chrissy
o 2023-24:

K-12 Science Curriculum Renewal Committee - Organizer: Bill Newton
● Monthly, during workday

o 2018-19: Benjamin, Corinda
o 2019-20: Various adoptions in 2019-20

* Policy indicates must have BoardMember representation



o 2020-21: Brandi, Julia
o 2021-22: Chrissy, Brandi
o 2022-23: Chrissy, Barb
o 2023-24:

K- 12 SEL Curriculum Adoption Committee - Organizer: Anne Carloss
● Monthly, during workday

o 2021-22: Jen, Barb
o 2022-23: Jen, Barb, Brandi
o 2023-24: N/A

Board Education – Organizer: MeghanWest
● 2020-21: David
● 2021-22: Board Chair
● 2022-23: Board Leadership
● 2023-24:

*Licensed Negotiations – Organizer: Gus Hedberg
● 2020-21: David R., Chrissy R.
● 2022-23: Tom S., Chrissy | Corinda, Barb
● 2023-24: N/A

*Classi�ed Negotiations -Organizer: Gus Hedberg
● 2023-24:

* Policy indicates must have BoardMember representation



DATE: August 15, 2023

TO: Board of Directors

FR: Bill Newton, Superintendent

RE: Superintendent Goals for 2023-24

EXPLANATION: The Board has the opportunity to review and give input on the goals for the
Superintendent for the 2023-24 school year. This is the first draft presented
to the board for collaboration.

PRESENTER: Bill Newton, Superintendent

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

2023-24 Superintendent Goals

RECOMMENDATION: None

PROPOSED MOTION: None



Superintendent Goals 2023-2024

HRCSD Core Value: Student Learning and Growth: The superintendent will,
● support high school success programs so that the:

○ ninth grade on-track rate increases from 87% to 93.0%, with a long term goal of 95% by 2026.
○ four-year cohort graduation rate increases from 90.6% to exceed 92.0%, with a long term goal of 95% by 2026.
○ percent of graduating seniors have taken three or more college eligible courses will increase from 61% to exceed 64%

● ensure rigorous academic programs are implemented with training and support so that the percentage of students meeting or exceeding Oregon Statewide Assessment in:
○ English Language Arts increases from 45.3% to exceed 49.0%, with a long term goal of 60% meeting or exceeding by 2026.
○ Mathematics increases from 35.4% to exceed 39.0%, with a long term goal of 52% meeting or exceeding by 2026.

HRCSD Core Value: Equity and Cultural Responsiveness: The superintendent will,
● ensure each student in HRCSD has access to a reliable internet source, understands and knows how to use their technology tools, and has access to rigorous curriculum;
● ensure each school’s continuous improvement plan is setting rigorous goals and taking equity-centered action steps to improve learning outcomes for all students;
● ensure each students’ unique learning needs are met by providing all sta� access to on-going professional development and support;
● ensure multi-tiered systems of support are e�ectively identifying and intervening with students in need of academic, attendance and social-emotional interventions;
● ensure the District continues to recruit and hire a diverse workforce.

HRCSD Core Value: Community and Family Partnerships: The superintendent will,
● implement a twice-annual stakeholder survey to monitor our progress toward improving and maintaining public trust.
● continue to seek new partnerships with local agencies to foster the conditions for positive, safe and inclusive learning environments in our schools.
● ensure each school and our district are focused on improving opportunities for families to

HRCSD Core Value: Wellness and Health: The superintendent will,
● ensure all schools e�ectively implement school-wide PBIS by achieving at least 70% on the Tiered Fidelity Inventory (TFI).
● support a District-wide e�ort to improve the regular attendance rate from 65.0% to exceed 75.0%

HRCSD Core Value: Safety and Operations: The superintendent will,
● ensure that each school has implemented the Standard Response Protocols and regularly and consistently practices and prepares for emergencies.
● develop a budget that supports the priorities and goals of the Strategic Plan 2026, has a minimum 5% general fund in reserves, and actual expenditures come within 4% of planned

expenditures in the adopted budget
● ensure the district earns its tenth consecutive “unmodi�ed opinion” from external auditors.



DATE: August 15, 2023

TO: Board of Directors

FR: Bill Newton, Superintendent

RE: Consolidated Reports

EXPLANATION: All items listed below are matters considered by the Board of Directors to
be routine and do not require a motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a member of the board requests a specific
item to be removed from the consolidated reports and placed on the
regular agenda. Any item of the consolidated reports may be pulled by any
board member for a full discussion. The request to move an item from the
consolidated reports to an individual report item should occur during the
“Review/Revision of Agenda” section of the board meeting. Otherwise, all
items contained in the consolidated report will be reviewed by the board
without discussion.

PRESENTER: Bill Newton, Superintendent

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

None

RECOMMENDATION: None

PROPOSED MOTION: None



DATE: August 15, 2023

TO: Board of Directors

FR: Bill Newton, Superintendent

RE: Consolidated Action

EXPLANATION: All items listed below are matters considered by the Board of Directors to
be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a member of the board requests a specific
item to be removed from the consolidated action and placed on the regular
agenda. Any item of the consolidated action may be pulled by any board
member for a full discussion and associated vote. The request to move an
item from the consolidated action to an individual action item should occur
during the “Review/Revision of Agenda'' section of the board meeting.
Otherwise, a motion to approve all items contained in the consolidated
action will be requested by the adminstration.

PRESENTER: Bill Newton, Superintendent

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

A. Regular Business Meeting Minutes - July 11, 2023
B. Regular Business Meeting Minutes - July 24, 2023
C. Human Resources Report/Personnel Action
D. Final Reading of Board Policy
E. Annual Appointments Update

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the Board approve the consolidated action
as presented

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to approve the consolidated action as presented.



MINUTES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

July 11, 2023
The School Board minutes are not official, as they have not been approved by the Hood River County School District Board of Directors. These
minutes are for review and are subject to change and/or approval. Once approved, signed, and dated, they become official.

I. REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING AND CALL TO ORDER – 11:07 P.M.
The Hood River County School District (HRCSD) regular board meeting was called to order at 11:07
p.m. by the board chair, Corinda Hankins Elliott, in the Nathaniel Coe Administrative Center, 1011
Eugene St, Hood River OR 97031

The following board members were present:
Julia Garcia-Ramirez
Corinda Hankins-Elliott, Chair
Chrissy Reitz, Vice-Chair
Brandi Sheppard
Barb Hosford
Jen Kelly
David Stuben

The following board members were absent:

The following members of the superintendent’s cabinet were present:
Rich Polkinghorn, Acting Superintendent
Doug Holmes, Executive Director of Finance
Gus Hedberg, Executive Director of Human Resources

The following HRCSD staff/community members were present:
Tod Hilstad, Meghan West, Catherine Dalbey, Trish Walker

II. OATH OF OFFICE - 11:07 A.M.
Recently elected and appointed board members Corinda Hankins Elliott, Chrissy Reitz, and David Stuben
took the oath of office before in order to assume duties.

III. EXECUTIVE SESSION - 11:08 A.M.
The board went into executive session per ORS 192.660(2)(a) for the purpose of discussing the
employment/hiring of a public officer, employee, staff member or individual agent. Only applies to
original hiring of employee, not rehires, and not the filling of board vacancies as provided by ORS
192.660 (2)(a).

The board closed the executive session at 5:24pm.

** The board took a break from 5:24-6:04pm**

IV. RETURN TO REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING - 6:04P.M.

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, July 11, 2023 Page 1 of 5



The board resumed the regular business meeting at 6:04 P.M.

V. REVIEW/REVISION OF AGENDA - 6:04 P.M.
Superintendent Polkinghorn shared a revised personnel report had been added to the board packet.

VI. SUPERINTENDENT AND BOARD COMMUNICATION - 6:04 P.M.
Acting Superintendent Rich Polkinghorn shared the following information with the Board:

- During the interim superintendent search, Polkinghorn is happy to continue providing services
until the interim is selected.

- Welcomed David Stuben as his first official meeting as a board member.
- Nate Parson is on the personnel report to be hired as the Parkdale Elementary Principal.
- Vacancies at HRVHS for assistant principal and athletic director positions.
- Kelly Beard resigned as Special Education Director after a long tenure at HRCSD in many roles.
- Director Ortega-Cooper just returned from a migrant student field trip to Washington D.C.
- AVID Summer Institute had 50 staff members attend and marks the beginning of becoming an

AVID school district.
- Summer school started on Monday, this year the program is slightly scaled back due to funding.
- Polkinghorn shared this will be his last board meeting.

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT/HEARING OF DELEGATIONS OR VISITORS - 6:14 P.M.
There was no one signed up for public comment.

VIII. ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD FOR 2022/2023 - 6:14 P.M.
Superintendent Rich Polkinghorn asked the Board for nominations to elect a Chair and Vice Chair for the
2022-2023 school year.

A motion was made by Corinda Hankins Elliott to elect Chrissy Reitz as Chair of the Hood River County
School Board of Directors for the 2022-2023 school year. It was seconded by Julia Garcia-Ramirez and
approved 7-0.

A motion was made by Corinda Hankins Elliott to elect Brandi Sheppard as Vice-Chair of the Hood River
County School Board of Directors for the 2022-2023 school year. It was seconded by Chrissy Reitz and
approved 7-0.

IX. ANNUAL APPOINTMENTS FOR 2022/2023 - 6:18 P.M.
Doug Holmes presented Exhibit A. Annual Appointments for 2023-24. Holmes shared once an interim
superintendent is hired, they will amend the appointments to include that person.

A motion was made by Corinda Hankins Elliott to approve the annual appointments for 2023-24 as
presented in Exhibit A. It was seconded by Brandi Sheppard and unanimously approved 6-0. Julia
Garcia-Ramirez was not present for the vote.

X. CONSOLIDATED REPORTS
There were no consolidated reports presented.

XI. CONSOLIDATED ACTION - 6:23 P.M.
All items listed below are matters considered by the Board of Directors to be routine and were enacted by
one motion. There was no separate discussion of these items. The Consolidated Action consisted of the
following items:

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, July 11, 2023 Page 2 of 5



a. Regular Business Meeting Minutes for June 21, 2023
b. Human Resources Report/Personnel Action

A motion was made by Corinda Hankins Elliott to approve the Consolidated Action as presented. It was
seconded by Jen Kelly and approved 6-0. Julia Garcia-Ramirez was not present for the vote

XII. REPORTS & DISCUSSIONS – 6:21 P.M.

A. Second Reading of Board Policy
Director of Human Resources Gus Hedberg presented the second reading of board policies. The board
asked for cleanup on a few policies. Hedberg will bring them back for a final reading with the requested
edits.

XIII. ACTION ITEMS – 6:27 P.M.

A. Appoint Board Member for Contract Negotiations
Board Chair Chrissy Reitz asked for nominations to select a board member to enter into contract
negotiations in regards to the interim superintendent contract.

A motion was made by Corinda Hankins Elliott to select Chrissy Reitz as the point person for contract
negotiations on behalf of the Hood River County School Board of Directors for the interim superintendent
contract. It was seconded by Barb Hosford and passed 7-0.

IVX. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – 6:47 P.M.

Director Brandi Sheppard
Director Sheppard was excited to hear about migrant summer school and summer school. She welcomed
David Stuben and Gus Hedberg. She thanked Polkinghorn and Dalbey.

Director Corinda Hankins-Elliott
Director Hankins-Elliott welcomed David Stuben to the board. She is excited to hear about the AVID
training and looking forward to the expansion. She thanked Kelly Beard and shared he will be missed.
She shared she is also sad to see Polkinghorn leave and appreciates all he’s done for the district. Hankins
Elliott shared she knows there are a lot of administrative changes, but hopes the district will come out
stronger.

Director Barb Hosford
Director Hosford echoed her thanks to Polkinghorn and Dalbey for all their hard work and dedication to
the district. She congratulated those that are moving on with their careers from the district. She shared it
was good to hear about the strong summer school opportunities the district is providing. She thanked the
custodial crew for their hard work over the summer. She reminded the community the district is still
hiring bus drivers.

Director Jen Kelly
Director Kelly congratulated Corinda, Chrissy, and David for being elected. She also congratulated Nate
Parson on his role. She thanked Polkinghorn and Dalbey. She is looking forward to the next year.

Director Julia Garcia-Ramirez
Director Garcia-Ramirez congratulated Nate Parson as the new principal at Parkdale Elementary. She
wished the best to Kelly Beard on his next adventure. She shared she is always amazed with the amount

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, July 11, 2023 Page 3 of 5



of dedication and work provided to the migrant students to provide those opportunities. She thanked
Polkinghorn and Dalbey for all their hard work and shared they will be missed. She shared she is looking
forward to what’s coming next.

Director David Stuben
Director Stuben thanked Rich Polkinghorn for his service to HRCSD. He wished him luck in his best
endeavors. He shared he enjoyed hearing about the fantastic opportunities for students and staff with the
migrant students Washington DC trip and AVID Conference. Stuben shared it was an honor to be of
service to the district.

Director Chrissy Reitz
Director Reitz congratulated David Stuben on his new role and thanked him for coming in prepared as a
board member. She shared a special thanks to Kelly Beard noting his presence will be missed by many.
She congratulated Nate Parson on his new role as principal. She wanted to thank the Athletic Director
hiring committee for their diligence and commitment to hiring the right person and taking their time. She
shared that the trip to DC for students was great. She noted it feels good to see the progress with the
AVID program. Reitz shared how phenomenal it is to have AVID district wide. She thanked Polkinghorn
for his time with the district. She thanked the board for the long day and a great productive work session.

ADJOURNMENT – 6:51 P.M.
Chair Reitz adjourned the meeting at 6:51 P.M.

Board Meeting Voting
Chart

Date: July 11, 2023 Time: 6:00pm

MOTION
NUMBER

1. Elect Chrissy Reitz as
Chair

2. Elect Brandi
Sheppard Vice-Chair

3. Approve Annual
Appointments for
2023-24 as presented

4. Consolidated
Action

Position Name ATTENDANCE Aye No
Abstai

n
Aye No Abstain Aye No Abstain Aye No Abstain

Position 1 Chrissy Reitz

Position 2 Barb Hosford

Position 3
Corinda
Hankins Elliott

Position 4
Julia
Garcia-Ramirez

Position 5 David Stuben

Position 6
Brandi
Sheppard

Position 7
Member
at Large

Jen Kelly

Motion made by: Corinda Hankins Elliott Corinda Hankins Elliott Corinda Hankins Elliott
Corinda Hankins

Elliott

Seconded by: Julia Garcia Ramirez Chrissy Reitz Brandi Sheppard Jen Kelly

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, July 11, 2023 Page 4 of 5



6. Appoint Reitz for Contract
Negotiations

Position Name Aye No Abstain

Position 1 Chrissy Reitz

Position 2 Barb Hosford

Position 3
Corinda Hankins
Elliott

Position 4
Julia
Garcia-Ramirez

Position 5 David Stuben

Position 6 Brandi Sheppard

Position 7
Member
at Large

Jen Kelly

Motion made by: Corinda Hankins Elliott

Seconded by: Barb Hosford

SIGNATURES

_________________________________ ______________________________________
Chrissy Reitz, Board Chair Date Rich Polkinghorn, Superintendent Date
Board:mw

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, July 11, 2023 Page 5 of 5



MINUTES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

July 24, 2023
The School Board minutes are not official, as they have not been approved by the Hood River County School District Board of Directors. These
minutes are for review and are subject to change and/or approval. Once approved, signed, and dated, they become official.

I. REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING AND CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 P.M.
The Hood River County School District (HRCSD) regular board meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m.
by the board chair, Chrissy Reitz, in a virtual google meets meeting.

The following board members were present:
Julia Garcia-Ramirez
Chrissy Reitz, Chair
Brandi Sheppard, Vice-Chair
Barb Hosford
David Stuben

The following board members were absent:
Jen Kelly
Corinda Hankins-Elliott

The following members of the superintendent’s cabinet were present:
Bill Newton, Executive Director of Curriculum & Instruction
Patricia Ortega-Cooper, Executive Director of Equity and Family Partnerships

The following HRCSD staff/community members were present:
Tod Hilstad, Meghan West,

II. REVIEW/REVISION OF AGENDA - 6:01 P.M.
Board Chair Reitz shared there was a revised personnel report.

III. PUBLIC COMMENT/HEARING OF DELEGATIONS OR VISITORS - 6:01 P.M.
There was no one signed up for public comment.

IV. CONSOLIDATED ACTION - 6:01 P.M.
All items listed below are matters considered by the Board of Directors to be routine and were enacted by
one motion. There was no separate discussion of these items. The Consolidated Action consisted of the
following items:

a. Human Resources Report/Personnel Action

A motion was made by Brandi Sheppard to approve the Consolidated Action as presented. It was
seconded by Julia Garcia Ramirez and approved 5-0.

V. ACTION ITEMS – 6:03 P.M.

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, July 24, 2023 Page 1 of 2



A. Approve Interim Superintendent Contract
Board Chair Chrissy Reitz presented the Hood River County School District Board of Directors with a
July 26, 2023 - June 30, 2024 contract for approval for Bill Newton to become the interim superintendent
of the Hood River County School District. Reitz shared the process was very collaborative and completed
in a timely manner. The board congratulated Newton and looks forward to this year with him as interim
superintendent. Newton shared he is honored and looking forward to this opportunity.

A motion was made by Julia Garcia Ramirez to approve the interim superintendent contract for Bill
Newton as presented. It was seconded by Brandi Sheppard and passed 5-0.

IV. ADJOURNMENT – 6:06 P.M.
Chair Reitz adjourned the meeting at 6:06 P.M.

Board Meeting Voting
Chart

Date: July 24, 2023 Time:
6:00pm

MOTION
NUMBER

1.Approve Consolidated
Action

2. Approve Interim Superintendent
Contract for Bill Newton

Position Name ATTENDANCE Aye No Abstain Aye No Abstain

Position 1 Chrissy Reitz

Position 2 Barb Hosford

Position 3
Corinda
Hankins Elliott

Position 4
Julia
Garcia-Ramirez

Position 5 David Stuben

Position 6
Brandi
Sheppard

Position 7
Member
at Large

Jen Kelly

Motion made by: Brandi Sheppard Julia Garcia Ramirez

Seconded by: Julia Garcia Ramirez Brandi Sheppard

SIGNATURES

_________________________________ ______________________________________
Chrissy Reitz, Board Chair Date Superintendent Date Board:mw

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, July 24, 2023 Page 2 of 2



August 15, 2023

To: Board of Directors

From: Gus Hedberg – Human Resources Director

Re: Personnel Report - REVISED

EXPLANATION:

Attached is the Personnel Report - REVISED of personnel actions for the August 15, 2023 board meeting.

Presenter: Gus Hedberg – Human Resources Director

Supplementary
Materials: Personnel Report - REVISED

Recommendation: Request board approval of the attached Personnel Report - REVISED

ProposedMotion: I move to approve the Personnel Report - REVISED as presented on August 15, 2023



Hood River County School District
Human Resources Office

1011 Eugene Street ● Hood River, Oregon 97031 ● (541) 387-5012 ● (541) 387-5099

**REVISED** August 15, 2023 **REVISED**
NEW HIRES (Approval Needed) - NUEVAS CONTRATACIONES (Se Necesita Aprobación)

NAME POSITION BUILDING COMMENTS

Zacharia Teckenburg Transportation Service Person 1 District Transportation New Position

Alondra Cazares Instructional Assistant Westside Elementary School Replacing vacancy

Ami Felt Temporary 1st Grade Teacher May Street Elementary School
Filling temporary vacancy for 2023/24
school year

Erin Peters Temporary 2nd Grade Teacher May Street Elementary School
Filling temporary vacancy for 2023/24
school year

John Ritchie Social Studies Teacher (1.0 FTE) Hood River Middle School
Replacing Rust transfer to Hood River
Valley High School

Susan Wade Music Teacher (1.0 FTE) Mid Valley Elementary School
Replacing Peterson transfer to Parkdale
Elementary

Briana Grajeda Secretary 1 (8 hours/day) Hood River Options Academy
Replacing Ramos transfer to Nutrition
Services

Patricia Fateley SLC Instructional Assistant
(7.5 hours/day)

Hood River Valley High School Filling vacancy

Veronica Alcantar Instructional Assistant
(7 hours/day)

Parkdale Elementary School Replacing Mora

Anna Arntz Reading Interventionist
(6.75 hours/day

May Street Elementary Replacing Browning

RESIGNATION/RETIREMENT/TERMINATION - RENUNCIAS/RETIROS/DESPIDOS
NAME POSITION BUILDING COMMENTS

Erica Silva Secretary I
May Street Elementary
School

Resigning; not returning for 2023/24
school year

Claire Kitzman Instructional Assistant
May Street Elementary
School

Resigning; not returning for 2023/24
school year

Malia Shertzer Custodian I
Hood River Valley High
School

Resigning; effective August 18, 2023

REQUESTS FOR LEAVES OF ABSENCE - SOLICITUDES DE AUSENTISMO
NAME POSITION BUILDING COMMENTS

EMPLOYEE TRANSFERS - TRASLADOS DE EMPLEADOS
NAME FROM: POSITION/BUILDING TO: POSITION/BUILDING COMMENTS

Amy McConnell Assistant Curriculum &
Instruction Director/District Office

Interim Director of Curriculum &
Instruction/District Office Replacing Newton

Tess Misa
Special Education Instructional
Coach (TOSA)/Special Education
Department

Assistant Principal/Hood River
Valley High School

Replacing Parson



ADVERTISED VACANCIES (Information Only) - POSICIONES VACANTES (Solo Información)
OPEN POSITION BUILDING STATUS COMMENTS

Elementary Teachers Pool for 23/24 Various locations Offers pending To fill various Elementary Teaching
vacancies around the district

Speech Language Pathologist Pool District-wide services Open until filled Replacing Stanton transfer to EI/ECSE

Behavior/Autism Specialist (1.0 FTE) Student Services Open until filled Replacing Copeland

Instructional Assistants - multiple
vacancies Hood River Valley High School Open until filled Filling multiple vacancies at Hood River

Valley High School

School Psychologist (1.0 FTE) Student Services Offer pending Additional need

Middle School Science Teacher
(1.0 FTE) Wy’east Middle School Offer pending Replacing Arechaga’s transfer to HROA

Elementary Secretary/Bookkeeper
(8 hours/day) Mid Valley Elementary School Interviews scheduled Replacing Marquez’s transfer to HRVHS

Instructional Assistant (6.5 hours/day) Mid Valley Elementary School Offers pending Replacing Ramirez’s resignation

Instructional Assistant (4.5 hours/day) Mid Valley Elementary School Offer pending Reconfiguring hours

District AVID Coordinator/High School
AVID Electives Teacher (1.0 FTE) Hood River Valley High School Open until filled Replacing Beardsley & reconfigured

position at District Office.

High School ELD Teacher/District ELD
TOSA (1.0 FTE) Hood River Valley High School Open until filled Replacing Zalaznik & reconfigured

position at District Office

K-12 Principal (1.0 FTE) Hood River Options Academy Open until filled Replacing Running

Instructional Assistant Pool May Street Elementary School Offers pending Replacing multiple vacancies

Community Works
Coordinator/Paraprofessional
(8 hours/day)

Hood River Valley High School Open until filled New position

ELD Instructional Assistants Wy’east Middle School Open until filled Replacing Vega transfer to Secretary

Family Engagement Paraprofessional
(8 hours/day) Westside Elementary School Open until filled Replacing Benavides transfer to May

Street Elementary

Kitchen Helper (4.5 hours/day) Hood River Middle School Open until filled Replacing Ballard resignation

3rd Grade Teacher (.50 FTE) Cascade Locks Elementary
School Open until filled New position

Instructional Assistant (6.5 hours/day) Cascade Locks Elementary
School Open until filled Replacing vacancy

Secondary (6th-12th Grade) Behavior
Paraprofessional District-wide programs Open until filled New position

Custodian I (8 hours/day) Hood River Valley High School Open until filled Replacing Shertzer resignation

Behavior Support Paraprofessional
(8 hour/day) Student Services Open until filled Replacing Herman transfer to Parkdale



Bilingual Secretary I (8 hours/day) May Street Elementary School Open until filled Replacing Silva resignation

In-district - Kitchen Helper (8 hours/day) Mid Valley Elementary School Open until filled Replacing Magana transfer to Secretary I
at Mid Valley

In-district - Reading Specialist/Math
Specialist (1.0 FTE) Cascade Locks Elementary Open until filled Reconfigured positions

8/15/23







DATE: August 15th, 2023
TO: Board of Directors
FR: Gus Hedberg - Director of Human Resources
RE: Policy Updates

EXPLANATION:

The Director of Human Resources will provide the final reading for policy updates for the Board
to approve. The following updated Board Policies for consideration are as follows:

● DBEA - Budget Committee
● EEBB - Use of Private Vehicles for District Business
● GCBDF/GDBDF - Paid Family Leave Insurance
● IFE - Curriculum Guides & Course Outlines
● IGDJ - Interscholastic Activities
● IGBHD - Program Exemptions
● IK - Academic Achievement
● IMB - District Improvement Program
● JEA - Compulsory Attendance
● JGAB - Use of Restraint and Seclusion
● JGE - Expulsion
● JHC - Student Health Services and Requirements
● KL - Public Complaints

PRESENTERS: Gus Hedberg

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS: Copies of Proposed Policies

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends approving the final reading of the
board policies as presented.

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to approve the final reading of board policies as presented.



Hood River County School District
Code: DBEA
Adopted: 5/28/98
Revised/Readopted: 1/22/14; 8/16/23
Orig. Code: 3130

Budget Committee

Organization, Membership and Terms of Office

The budget committee shall consist of seven members appointed by the Board in addition to the seven
elected Board members. Appointive member(s) must not be an officer, agent or employee of the district.
No budget committee member may receive any type of compensation from the district. The Board shall act
on each appointment.

Annually, the Board will identify and announce vacant budget committee positions within board zones.
Interested community members will submit applications to the district office.

Each budget committee member shall be appointed for a term of three years except where an appointment
is made to complete the term of a member leaving the committee. The terms shall be staggered so that
one-third or approximately one-third of the terms of the appointed members expire each year.

A majority of the constituted committee is required for passing an action item. Majority for a 14-member
budget committee is 8. Therefore, if only 8 members are present, a unanimous vote is needed for passing
an action item.

Presiding Officer and Orientation of Budget Committee

1. Organization: The budget committee will hold its first regular organizational meeting on a day set by
the Board. A presiding officer shall be elected from among its members at this meeting. Such
meeting may be prior to or on the date the budget message and document are presented.

2. Background Information: Budget committee members will be provided with data for the ensuing
year(s), such as the Board’s educational plan, and other pertinent material bearing on the preparation
of the district budget.

Meetings of the Budget Committee

The district’s budget committee shall hold one or more meetings to receive the budget message, the budget
document and to provide members of the public with an opportunity to ask questions about and comment
on the budget document. The budget officer shall announce the time and place for all such meetings, as
provided by law. All meetings of the budget committee are open to the public.

Function of the Budget Committee

Budget Committee – DBEA
1-2



As provided by law, the committee will hear the budget message from the superintendent, receive the
budget document, hear public comments and suggestions and announce the time and place for future
meetings.

It is the function of the budget committee to approve budget estimates for an educational plan previously
determined by the Board. No new program should be considered for the budget estimate that has not
previously been submitted to the Board and approved as a part of the educational plan. The budget
committee will determine levels of spending, but will not determine programs.

The budget committee may request from the superintendent or budget officer any information used in the
preparation of the budget document. The committee may also, through the superintendent, request the
attendance of any district employee at its meetings. The budget committee will approve the budget
document as submitted by the superintendent or as subsequently revised by the committee. After approval
of the original or revised budget document, the budget committee’s duties cease.

Final Action

The budget committee will approve an estimated district budget document for submission to the Board.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 174.130
ORS 192.610 - 192.695

ORS 294.305 - 294.565
ORS 329.711 ORS 433.835 - 433.875

Budget Committee – DBEA
2-2

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-174
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-192
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-294
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-433


Hood River County School District
Code: EEBB
Adopted: 2/12/14; 8/16/23

Use of Private Vehicles for District Business

Staff will use district-owned vehicles whenever possible and should schedule activities and transportation
far enough in advance to avoid any nonemergency use of private vehicles.

The superintendent or designee will develop regulations for staff use of private vehicles that will safeguard
the district, its employees and students in matters of safety, insurance and liability. The Board will review
such regulations at least annually.

No staff member or volunteer will use a private vehicle for district business, including the transportation of
students, without approval in accordance with established district procedures. Authorization to use a
private vehicle must be obtained before actual use of the vehicle. Staff members or volunteers who are
authorized to use a private vehicle on district business will be reimbursed in accordance with Oregon
travel rates.

A student will not be allowed to perform district business with their own vehicle without authorization.
Any student so authorized must obtain prior written approval from the designated district official.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 30.260 - 30.265
ORS 332.107

ORS 801.455
ORS 811.210

ORS 815.055
ORS 815.080
OAR 735-102-0010

Cross Reference(s):

DLC - Expense Reimbursements

Use of Private Vehicles for District Business – EEBB
1-1

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-030
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-801
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-811
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-815
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-815
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-735-102


Hood River County School District
Code: GCBDF/GDBDF
Adopted: 8/16/23

Paid Family Medical Leave Insurance *

The district provides an equivalent plan for paid family and medical leave and does not participate in Paid
Leave Oregon. This plan has been approved by the Employment Department. The district will file the
Oregon Quarterly Tax Report as required.

The district will make available a notice poster that outlines the requirements and procedures for the
equivalent plan.1 This poster will be displayed in each of the district’s buildings or worksites in an area that
is accessible to and regularly frequented by employees.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

1 For poster requirements, see OAR 471-070-2330.

3/15/23│SL Paid Family Medical Leave Insurance – GCBDF/GDBDF
1-2



ORS 657B.210 – 657B.260 OAR 471-070-2200 - 2460

7/19/16│PH Military Leave of Absence – GCBDE/GDBDE
2-2

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-657b
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-471


Hood River County School District
Code: IFE
Adopted: 10/11/95
Revised/Readopted: 8/12/15; 8/16/23
Orig. Code: 8031

Curriculum Guides and Course Outlines

Curriculum guides and course outlines will be written for all courses offered in the district. Academic
content standards1 as adopted by the State Board of Education will be included. Teachers are expected to
adhere closely to the course of study adopted by the district. Planned course statements will be on file for
each course offered in grades 6-12. Information regarding course offerings will be made available to all
students and interested district patrons, upon request.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

1 The proficiency in Essential Skills requirement has been waived and is not a condition of receiving a high school diploma
during the 2021-2022, 2022-2023 or 2023-2024 school year (Senate Bill 744, 2021).

Curriculum Guides and Course Outlines – IFE
1-2



ORS 332.075(1)
ORS 336.035

OAR 581-021-0045

OAR 581-021-0046
OAR 581-022-2000
OAR 581-022-2030
OAR 581-022-2250

OAR 581-022-2300
OAR 581-022-2305
OAR 581-022-2310
OAR 581-022-2315

Copy of IFE D1.docx

Copy of HRCSD Adopted Curriculum List

Curriculum Guides and Course Outlines – IFE
2-2

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1TF2ERxvOvcdL943Ly6fAdfmgnbj5kWFq/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=102923655349134483821&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1v_LP6symwzIMgqORA8N4fTY_bmndyHATXBdm5Ohd4Qw/edit?usp=sharing


Hood River County School District
Code: IGBHD
Adopted: 10/11/95
Revised/Readopted: 8/12/15; 8/16/23
Orig. Code: 8029

Program Exemptions

The district may excuse students from a state-required program or learning activity, where necessary, to
accommodate students’ disabilities or religious beliefs. The district may also approve and grant credit for
an alternative to a state- or district-required program or learning activity.

In situations involving educational programs or courses required for graduation, the Board may approve
and grant credit to a student for an alternative to a state-required program or learning activity. Approval of
the alternative shall be based upon and shall include: a) a written statement from the student and the
student’s parent or guardian of the anticipated educational advantages which will result from the
alternative; b) an evaluation of the request and approval by appropriate school personnel (the alternative
should be consistent with the student’s educational progress and career goals as described in OAR
581-022- 2270 and 581-022- 2060); and c) other information as required by the Board. Following approval
by the Board at one of its scheduled meetings, and upon completion of the alternative, credit shall be
granted to the student.

In situations involving educational activities within any program or course offering where the student’s
non-participation affects their grade, the principal or designee may approve and grant credit to a student
for an alternative to the learning activity. Approval of the alternative shall be based upon and shall include:
a) a written statement from the student and the student’s parent or guardian of the anticipated educational
advantages which will result from the alternative; b) an evaluation of the request by appropriate school
personnel; and c) other information as requested by the principal or designee. Following approval by the
principal or designee, and upon completion of the alternative, credit shall be granted to the student.

This policy will be included in the student/parent handbook of each school as public notice of exemption
procedures.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 336.035(2)
ORS 336.465
ORS 336.615
ORS 336.625

ORS 336.635

OAR 581-002-0035
OAR 581-021-0009

OAR 581-021-0071
OAR 581-022-2050
OAR 581-022-2110
OAR 581-022-2505

Program Exemptions – IGBHD
1-1

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


Hood River County School District
Code: IGDJ
Adopted: 5/25/94
Revised/Readopted: 8/12/15; 6/27/18; 4/13/22; 8/16/23
Orig. Code: 8091

Interscholastic Activities**

The Board recognizes the integral role interscholastic activities play in the character development and
general enhancement of the education of its students. Accordingly, administrators, coaches, advisors,
student participants, and others associated with the district’s high school and middle school activities
programs and events1 shall conduct themselves in a manner that is consistent with the letter and spirit of
policies, rules, and regulations of the district and any associated voluntary organization congruous with
the Oregon School Activities Association (OSAA) and the fundamental values of sportsmanship. Each will
be held accountable for their actions.

The district and its schools may only be members of a voluntary organization2 that administers
interscholastic activities3 or that facilitates the scheduling and programming of interscholastic activities if
the organization:

1. Implements and adheres to equity focused policies that:

a. Address the use of derogatory or inappropriate names, insults, verbal assaults, profanity, or
ridicule that occurs at an interscholastic activity, including by spectators of the interscholastic
activity;

b. Prohibit discrimination;
c. Permit a student to wear religious clothing in accordance with the student’s sincerely held

religious belief and consistent with any safety and health requirements; and
d. Balance the health, safety, and reasonable accommodation needs of participants on an

activity-by-activity basis.

2. Maintains a transparent complaint process that:

a. Has a reporting system to allow participants of interscholastic activities or members of the
public to make complaints about student, coach, or spectator behavior;

b. Responds to a complaint made within 48 hours of the complaint being received; and
c. Resolves a complaint within 30 days of the complaint being received unless the organization

determines that there is good cause to extend the timeline for resolving the complaint.

3 Interscholastic activities includes: for students any grade from kindergarten through grade 12, athletics, music, speech and
other similar or related activities; for students in any grade from kindergarten through grade eight, activities that are offered only
before or after regular school hours and that may, but are not required to, involve interaction among other schools.

2 Includes a voluntary organization that administers interscholastic activities or that facilitates the scheduling and programming
of interscholastic activities.

1 This applies to only OSAA-sanctioned activities and events.

Interscholastic Activities** – IGDJ
1-3



3. Develops and implements a system of sanctions against schools, students, coaches, and spectators if
a complaint is verified; and

4. Performs an annual survey of students and their parents to understand and respond to potential
violations of equity focused policies or other discrimination.

The district shall allow homeschooled students that reside in the district, students eligible to attend school
and enrolled in a high school equivalency General Education Development (GED) program4 that reside in
the district, and students attending a public charter school that does not provide interscholastic activities
that reside in the district, the opportunity to participate in available interscholastic activities when the
requirements found in Oregon law are met.

Interscholastic activities when provided by the district will comply with Title IX and other
nondiscrimination laws.

District employees, students, parents, alumni, and activity volunteers are prohibited from inducing or
attempting to induce a student to attend a district school for interscholastic activity eligibility or
participation. The principal, activities director, advisors and coaches are each responsible for ensuring
student participants meet all district eligibility requirements of participation and those of the associated
voluntary organization. The principal or designee is responsible for ensuring accurate certification
regarding the eligibility of participating students and for verifying that athletic directors, coaches of sports,
and activity advisors have all required certifications prior to assuming their duties. The principal or
designee shall ensure that a program is in place to effectively evaluate the performance of all coaches and
activity advisors under their supervision.

Volunteers may be approved to assist with district activities with prior approval from the principal or
designee.

The principal shall investigate all allegations of district student ineligibility, staff recruitment violations or
other student or staff conduct that may violate Board policies, administrative regulations, and/or the rules
and regulations of the associated voluntary organization. The principal shall notify the superintendent or
designee of conduct that violates the terms of this policy and report to the associated voluntary
organization if required.

An employee determined to have violated Board policies and/or rules and regulations of the associated
voluntary organization may be subject to discipline, up to and including, dismissal. A student in violation
of Board policies and/or the rules and regulations of the associated voluntary organization will be subject
to discipline, up to and including, dismissal from an interscholastic activity or program, suspension and/or
expulsion from school. Volunteers in violation of Board policies and/or the rules and regulations of the
associated voluntary organization shall be subject to discipline, up to and including, removal from district
programs and activities and such other sanctions as may be deemed appropriate by the district.

Employees, volunteers, or students in violation of such policies, rules and/or regulations may be required
to remunerate the district in the event fines are assessed as a result of their actions.

4 “High school equivalency program” means a program provided to assist a student in earning a certificate for passing an
approved high school equivalency test such as the General Educational Development (GED) test.

Interscholastic Activities** – IGDJ
2-3



The superintendent will develop procedures, as necessary, to implement this policy, including a process to
ensure that all district rules governing the conduct of students, staff, and volunteers engaged in district
activities are regularly reviewed and updated.

The district will annually review interscholastic activities and participation to determine whether the
current offerings reflect the students the district serves.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 326.051
ORS 332.075(1)(e)
ORS 332.107
ORS 339.450 - 339.460

OAR 581-015-2255
OAR 581-021-0045 – 0049
OAR 581-022-2308(2)
OAR 581-026-0005

OAR 581-026-0700
OAR 581-026-0705
OAR 581-026-0710

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683 (2018); Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in
Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R. Part 106 (2022).
Montgomery v. Bd. of Educ., 188 Or. App. 63 (2003).
Senate Bill 1522 (2022).

Interscholastic Activities** – IGDJ
3-3

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-326
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


Hood River County School District
Code: IK
Adopted: 8/12/15
Revised/Readopted: 8/16/23

Academic Achievement**

The Board believes it is important that teachers have as much accurate knowledge of student achievement
as possible to assess students’ needs and growth; thus, a sharing of information among parent, teacher and
student is essential.

The district shall ensure that all students have the opportunity to demonstrate progress toward mastery of
the knowledge and skills of the student’s current grade level or course content level. Students who have
not yet met or who exceed all of the standards at any grade level, will be offered additional services.

The Board directs staff to follow these guidelines in measuring and determining student progress:

1. Parents will be informed regularly, at least twice annually, of their student’s progress toward
achieving the academic content standards, including but not limited to:

a. Information on progress in each subject area to meet or exceed the academic content standards
at the student’s current grade level or course content level, including major goals used to
determine the information;

b. Specific evidence of student progress toward mastery of a continuum of academic knowledge
and skills (academic content standards) of a subject area, upon request from a parent;

c. [Evidence of the student’s progress in a continuum of knowledge and skills that are not
academic and that may include student behaviors that are defined by the district;]

d. Student scores on all state and local assessments indicating any of the requirements that have
been waived for the district or the individual and time periods for the waiver; and

e. Student progress toward completion of diploma requirements to parents of students in grades
9-12, including credits earned and demonstration of extended application.

2. Parents will be alerted and conferred with as soon as possible when a student’s performance or
behavior becomes unsatisfactory or shows marked or sudden deterioration;

3. Grades and/or coursework will be based upon academic proficiency and will not include student
behavior. Grades will not be used for disciplinary purposes. Absenteeism shall not be the sole
criterion for the reduction of a student’s grade;

4. At comparable levels, the school system will strive for consistency in grading and reporting except
when this consistency is inappropriate for certain classes or certain students;

5. When no grades are given but the student is evaluated in terms of progress, the school staff also will
show whether the student is achieving course requirements at the student’s current grade level;

6. The staff will take particular care to explain to students and families the meaning of marks and
symbols used to reflect student performance.

Academic Achievement** – IK
1-2



END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 107.154
ORS 329.485

ORS 343.295
OAR 581-021-0022

OAR 581-022-2260
OAR 581-022-2270

Academic Achievement** – IK
2-2

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-107
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


Hood River County School District
Code: IMB
Adopted: 8/16/23

District Improvement Program

The Board recognizes that the key work of school boards is to establish and promote a clear vision of
student achievement as the top priority of the district. The district will accomplish this through continued
evaluation and improvement of its programs.

The superintendent or designee will ensure development and implementation of a comprehensive,
collaborative planning and evaluation process that involves families, students, and staff from the
demographic groups of their school population in the district’s goal setting and continuous improvement
program efforts.

The district’s program will be consistent with Oregon Department of Education requirements and reflected
in school and district continuous improvement plans.

The district will, in striving for continuous improvement, annually review district and individual school
data on student achievement and prioritize, allocate and realign resources as necessary. The district will
annually review and report test results and progress to the community.

The superintendent or designee will develop administrative regulations as needed to implement this policy.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 329.095 ORS 332.107 OAR 581-022-2250

HR8/08/22│LF District Improvement Program – IMB
1-1

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


Hood River County School District
Code: JEA
Adopted: 12/13/06
Revised/Readopted: 5/14/14; 9/14/16; 4/25/18;

3/11/20; 8/16/23
Orig. Code: 6116; 9110; 9180

Compulsory Attendance**

Except when exempt by Oregon law, all children between ages 6 and 18 who have not completed the 12th
grade are required to regularly attend a public, full-time school during the entire school term. Persons
having legal control of a child between the ages 6 and 18, who has not completed the 12th grade, are
required to have the child attend and maintain the child in regular attendance during the entire school term.

All children five years of age who have been enrolled in a public school are required to attend regularly
while enrolled in the public school. Persons having legal control of a child, who is five years of age and
has enrolled the child in a public school, are required to have the child attend and maintain the child in
regular attendance during the school term.

Principals shall monitor and report any violation of the compulsory attendance law to the superintendent or
designee.

The district will develop procedures for issuing a citation.

A parent who is not supervising their child by requiring school attendance may also be in violation of
Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 163.577(1)(c); failing to supervise a child is a Class A violation.

Exemptions from Compulsory School Attendance

In the following cases, children shall not be required to attend public, full-time schools:

1. Children being taught in a private or parochial school in courses of study usually taught in
kindergarten through grade 12 in the public schools, and in attendance for a period equivalent to that
required of students attending public schools.

2. Children proving to the Board’s satisfaction that they have acquired equivalent knowledge to that
acquired in the courses of study taught in kindergarten through grade 12 in the public schools.

3. Children who have received a high school diploma or a modified diploma.

4. Children being taught, by a private teacher, the courses of study usually taught in kindergarten
through grade 12 in the public school for a period equivalent to that required of students attending
public schools.

5. Children being educated in the home by a parent, guardian or private teacher:.

Compulsory Attendance** – JEA
1-3



a. When a student is taught or is withdrawn from a public school to be taught by a parent or
private teacher, the parent or teacher must notify the Columbia Gorge Education Service
District (ESD) in writing within 10 days of such occurrence. In addition, when a
home-schooled student moves to a new ESD, the parent shall notify the new ESD in writing,
within 10 days, of the intent to continue home schooling. The ESD shall acknowledge receipt
of any notification in writing within 90 days of receipt of the notification. The ESD is to
notify, at least annually, school districts of home-schooled students who reside in their district;

b. Each child being taught by a parent or private teacher shall be examined no later than August
15, following grades 3, 5, 8 and 10:

(1) If the student was withdrawn from public school, the first examination shall be
administered at least 18 months after the date the student withdrew;

(2) If the child never attended public or private school, the first examination shall be
administered prior to the end of grade 3.

c. Procedures for homeschooling students with disabilities are set out in Oregon Administrative
Rule (OAR) 581-021-0029;

d. Examinations testing each child shall be from the list of approved examinations from the State
Board of Education;

e. The examination must be administered by a neutral, individual qualified to administer tests on
the approved list provided by the Oregon Department of Education;

f. The person administering the examination shall score the examination and report the results to
the parent. Upon request of the ESD superintendent, the parent shall submit the results of the
examination to the ESD;

g. All costs for the test instrument, administration and scoring are the responsibility of the parent;
h. In the event the ESD superintendent finds that the child is not showing satisfactory educational

progress, the ESD superintendent shall follow the guidelines in Oregon Revised Statutes and
Oregon Administrative Rules.

6. Children whose sixth birthday occurred on or before September 1 immediately preceding the
beginning of the current school year, if the parent or guardian notified the child’s resident district in
writing that the parent or guardian is delaying the enrollment of their child for one school year to
better meet the child’s needs for cognitive, social or physical development, as determined by the
parent or guardian.

7. Children who are present in the United States on a nonimmigrant visa and who are attending a
private, accredited English language learner program in preparation for attending a private high
school or college.

8. Children excluded from attendance as provided by law.

9. Children who are eligible military children1 are exempt up to 10 days after the date of military
transfer or pending transfer indicated in the official military order.

1 “Military child” means a child who is in a military family covered by the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for
Military Children, as determined under rules adopted by the State Board of Education.

Compulsory Attendance** – JEA
2-3



10. An exemption may be granted to the parent or guardian of any child 16 or 17 years of age who is
lawfully employed full-time, or who is lawfully employed part-time and enrolled in school, a
community college or an alternative education program as defined in ORS 336.615.

11. An exemption may be granted to any child who is an emancipated minor or who has initiated the
procedure for emancipation under ORS 419B.550 - 419B.558.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 153.018
ORS 163.577
ORS 339.010 - 339.095
ORS 339.139

ORS 339.990
ORS 807.065
ORS 807.066

OAR 581-021-0026
OAR 581-021-0029
OAR 581-021-0076
OAR 581-021-0077

Compulsory Attendance** – JEA
3-3

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-153
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-163
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-807
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-807
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


Hood River County School District
Code: JGAB
Adopted: 8/08/12
Revised/Readopted: 5/14/14; 4/25/18; 10/23/19;

3/11/20; 8/16/23
Orig. Code: 9321

Use of Restraint and Seclusion**

The Board is dedicated to the development and application of best practices within the district’s public
educational/behavioral programs. The Board establishes this policy and its administrative regulation to
define the circumstances that must exist and the requirements that must be met prior to, during, and after
the use of restraint or seclusion as an intervention with district students.

The use of the following types of restraint on a student in the district is prohibited:

1. Chemical restraint.

2. Mechanical restraint.

3. Prone restraint.

4. Supine restraint.

5. Any restraint that involves the intentional and non incidental use of a solid object1, including a wall
or the floor, to impede a student’s movement, unless the restraint is necessary to prevent an imminent
life-threatening injury or to gain control of a weapon.

6. Any restraint that places, or creates a risk of placing, pressure on a student’s mouth, neck or throat.

7. Any restraint that places, or creates a risk of placing, pressure on a student’s mouth, unless the
restraint is necessary for the purpose of extracting a body part from a bite.

8. Any restraint that impedes, or creates a risk of impeding, breathing.

9. Any restraint that involves the intentional placement of the hands, feet, elbow, knee or any object on
a student’s neck, throat, genitals or other intimate parts.

10. Any restraint that causes pressure to be placed, or creates a risk of causing pressure to be placed, on
the stomach or back by a knee, foot or elbow bone.

11. Any action designed for the primary purpose of inflicting pain.

The use of a seclusion cell is prohibited.

1 The use of a solid object, including furniture, a wall, or the floor, by district staff performing a restraint is not prohibited if the
object is used for the staff’s own stability or support while performing the restraint and not as a mechanism to apply pressure
directly to the student’s body.

Use of Restraint and Seclusion** – JGAB
1-5



Restraint or seclusion may not be used for discipline, punishment, retaliation or convenience of staff,
contractors or volunteers of the district.

Restraint may be imposed on a student in the district only under the following circumstances:

1. The student’s behavior imposes a reasonable risk of imminent and substantial physical or bodily
injury to the student or others; and

2. Less restrictive interventions would not be effective.

Seclusion may be used on a student in the district only under the following circumstances:

1. The student’s behavior imposes a reasonable risk of imminent and serious bodily injury to the
student or others; and

2. Less restrictive interventions would not be effective.

If restraint or seclusion is used on a student, by trained staff or other staff available in the case of an
emergency when trained staff are not immediately available due to the unforeseeable nature of the
emergency, e.g., teacher, administrator, or volunteer, it will be used only for as long as the student’s
behavior poses a reasonable risk of imminent and substantial physical or bodily injury to the student or
others and less restrictive interventions would not be effective. Students will be continuously monitored by
staff for the duration of the restraint or seclusion.

Definitions

1. “Restraint” means the restriction of a student’s actions or movements by holding the student or using
pressure or other means.

“Restraint” does not include:

a. Holding a student’s hand or arm to escort the student safely and without the use of force from
one area to another;

b. Assisting a student to complete a task if the student does not resist the physical contact; or
c. Providing reasonable intervention with the minimal exertion of force necessary if the

intervention does not include a restraint prohibited under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS)
339.288 and the intervention is necessary to:

(1) Break up a physical fight;
(2) Interrupt a student’s impulsive behavior that threatens the student’s immediate safety,

including running in front of a vehicle or climbing on unsafe structures or objects; or

d. Effectively protect oneself or another from an assault, injury or sexual contact with the
minimum physical contact necessary for protection.

2. “Seclusion” means the involuntary confinement of a student alone in a room from which the student
is physically prevented from leaving. Seclusion includes, but is not limited to, the involuntary
confinement of a student alone in a room with a closed door, whether the door is locked or unlocked.
“Seclusion” does not include the removal of a student for a short period of time to provide the

Use of Restraint and Seclusion** – JGAB
2-5



student with an opportunity to regain self-control if the student is in a setting from which the student
is not physically prevented from leaving, or a student being left alone in a room with a closed door
for a brief period of time if the student is left alone for a purpose that is unrelated to the student’s
behavior.

3. “Seclusion cell” means a freestanding, self-contained unit that is used to isolate the student from
other students or physically prevent a student from leaving the unit or cause the student to believe
that the student is physically prevented from leaving the unit.

4. “Serious bodily injury” means any significant impairment of the physical condition of a person, as
determined by qualified medical personnel, whether self-inflicted or inflicted by someone else.

5. “Substantial physical or bodily injury” means any impairment of the physical condition of a person
that requires some form of medical treatment.

6. “Mechanical restraint” means a device used to restrict the movement of a student or the movement
or normal function of a portion of the body of a student. “Mechanical restraint” does not include:

a. A protective or stabilizing device ordered by a licensed physician; or
b. A vehicle safety restraint when used as intended during the transport of a student in a moving

vehicle.

7. “Chemical restraint” means a drug or medication that is used on a student to control behavior or
restrict freedom of movement that is not prescribed by a licensed physician or other qualified health
professional acting under the professional’s scope of practice for standard treatment of the student’s
medical or psychiatric condition; and administered as prescribed by a licensed physician or other
qualified health professional acting under the professional’s scope of practice.

8. “Prone restraint” means a restraint in which a student is held face down on the floor.

9. “Supine restraint” means a restraint in which a student is held face up on the floor.

Any student being restrained or secluded within the district whether in an emergency or as a part of a plan
shall be constantly monitored by staff for the duration of the intervention. Any room used for seclusion of
a student must meet the standards as outlined in Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 581-021-0568.

The district shall utilize the Crisis Prevention Institute (CPI) training program of restraint or seclusion for
use in the district. As required by state regulation, the selected program shall be one approved by the
Oregon Department of Education (ODE) and include, but not limited to, positive behavior support, conflict
prevention, de-escalation, and crisis response techniques. Any program selected by the district must be in
compliance with state and federal law with respect to the use of restraint and/or seclusion.

An annual review of the use of restraint and seclusion during the preceding school year shall be completed
and submitted to ODE to ensure compliance with district policies and procedures.

The results of the review and annual report shall be documented and shall include at a minimum:

1. The total number of incidents involving restraint;

Use of Restraint and Seclusion** – JGAB
3-5



2. The total number of incidents involving seclusion;

3. The total number of seclusions in a locked room;

4. The total number of students placed in restraint;

5. The total number of students placed in seclusion;

6. The total number of incidents that resulted in injuries or death to students or staff as a result of the
use of restraint or seclusion;

7. The total number of students placed in restraint or seclusion more than 10 times in a school year and
an explanation of what steps have been taken by the district to decrease the use of restraint and
seclusion for each student;

8. The total number of restraint or seclusion incidents carried out by untrained individuals;

9. The demographic characteristics2 of all students upon whom restraint or seclusion was imposed;

10. The total number of rooms available for use by the district for seclusion of a student and a
description of the dimensions and design of the rooms.

This annual report shall be made available to the public at the district’s main office and on the district’s
website, and to the Board.

At least once each school year, the parents and guardians of students of the district shall be notified as
about how to access the report.

The district shall investigate all complaints regarding the use of restraint and/or seclusion practices
according to the procedures outlined in Board policy KL - Public Complaints and KL-AR - Public
Complaint Procedure. The complaint procedure is available at the district’s administrative office and is
available on the home page of the district’s website.

The complainant, whether an organization or an individual, may appeal a district’s final decision to the
Oregon Department of Education pursuant to OAR 581-002-0001 - 581-002-0023.

The superintendent shall develop administrative regulations to carry out the requirements set forth in this
policy and to meet any additional requirements established by law related to the use, reporting, and written
documentation of the use of restraint or seclusion by district staff.

END OF POLICY

2 Including race, ethnicity, gender, disability status, migrant status, English proficiency and status as economically
disadvantaged, unless the demographic information would reveal personally identifiable information about an individual
student.

Use of Restraint and Seclusion** – JGAB
4-5



Legal Reference(s):
ORS 161.205
ORS 339.250
ORS 339.285
ORS 339.288
ORS 339.291
ORS 339.294
ORS 339.297

ORS 339.300
ORS 339.303

OAR 581-021-0061
OAR 581-021-0550
OAR 581-021-0553
OAR 581-021-0556

OAR 581-021-0563
OAR 581-021-0566
OAR 581-021-0568
OAR 581-021-0569
OAR 581-021-0570
OAR 581-022-2267
OAR 581-022-2370

Use of Restraint and Seclusion** – JGAB
5-5

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-161
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


 Hood River County School District 
 Code:  JGE 
 Adopted:  5/14/14 
 Revised/Readopted:  9/24/14; 1/31/18; 4/22/20; 8/16/23 
 Orig. Code:  9130; 9350 

 Expulsion** 

 A principal, after reviewing available information, may recommend to the superintendent that a student be 
 expelled. Expulsion of a student shall not extend beyond one calendar year. 

 A student may only be expelled for the following circumstances: 

 1.  When a student’s conduct poses a threat to the health or safety of students or employees; 

 2.  When other strategies to change the student’s conduct have been ineffective, except that expulsion 
 may not be used to address truancy; or 

 3.  When required by law. 

 The use of expulsion for discipline of a student in fifth grade or lower is limited to: 

 1.     Nonaccidental conduct causing serious physical harm to a student or employee; 

 2.     When a school administrator determines, based on the administrator’s observations or upon a report 
 from an employee, the student’s conduct poses a direct threat to the health or safety of students or 
 employees; or 

 3.     When the expulsion is required by law. 

 The age of the student and the past pattern of behavior will be considered prior to imposing the expulsion. 

 No student may be expelled without a hearing unless the student’s parents, or the student if 18 years of 
 age, waive the right to a hearing, either in writing or by failure to appear at a scheduled hearing. 

 The Board delegates the authority to decide on an expulsion to the superintendent. The superintendent may 
 designate another person to handle the potential expulsion, and the superintendent, a designee or another 
 individual may act as the hearings officer. The district may contract with an individual who is not 
 employed by the district to serve as the hearings officer. The hearings officer will not be associated with 
 the initial actions of the building administrators. The hearings officer will conduct the hearing and make a 
 final decision regarding the expulsion. A decision of the hearings officer may be appealed by the parent or 
 the student if age 18 or over to the Board for review. 

 If the decision of the hearings officer is appealed to the Board for review, the findings as to the facts and 
 the hearings officer’s decision will be submitted to the Board, and will be available in identical form to the 
 Board, the student and the student’s parents at the same time. At a future meeting, the Board will review 
 the hearings officer’s decision and will affirm, modify or reverse the decision. 

 Expulsion** – JGE 
 1  -  3 



 When a recommendation for an expulsion is made and a hearing is not waived, the following procedure is 
 required: 

 1.  Notice will be given to the student and the parent or guardian by personal service or by 
 certified mail at least five days prior to the scheduled hearing. 
 Notice shall include: 

 a.  The specific charge or charges and the specific facts which support the charge or charges; 
 b.  A statement of intent to consider the charges as reason for expulsion; 
 c.  The student’s right to a hearing; and 
 d.  When and where the hearing will take place. 

 2.      If the parent or student does not understand the English language, the district will provide an 
 interpreter during the hearing. All communications will be in a manner that is understandable to the 
 parents and student; 

 3.      The student shall be permitted to have representation present at the hearing to advise and to present 
 arguments. The representation may be an attorney, parent or other person. The district’s attorney may 
 be present; 

 4.  The student shall be afforded the right to present their version of the events underlying the expulsion 
 recommendation and to introduce evidence by testimony, writings or other exhibits; 

 5.  The student shall be permitted to be present and to hear the evidence presented by the district; 

 6.  The hearings officer or the student may record the hearing; 

 7.  Strict rules of evidence shall not apply to the proceedings. However, this shall not limit the hearings 
 officer’s control of the hearing; 

 8.  A Board-conducted hearing or a Board review of the hearings officer’s decision will be conducted in 
 executive session unless the student or the student’s parent requests a public hearing. If an executive 
 session is held by the Board or a private hearing held by the hearings officer, the following will not 
 be made public: 

 a.  The name of the minor student; 
 b.  The issues involved, including a student’s confidential records; 
 c.  The discussion; 
 d.  The vote of Board members, which may be taken in executive session when considering an 

 expulsion. 

 Prior to expulsion for reasons other than a weapons violation, the district must notify the student and 
 parents of alternative programs of instruction or instruction combined with counseling and document this 
 notification. 

 END OF POLICY 

 Legal Reference(s): 
 ORS 192  .660 
 ORS 332  .061 

 ORS 336  .615 - 336.665 
 ORS 339  .115 

 ORS 339  .240 
 ORS 339  .250 

 Expulsion** – JGE 
 2  -  3 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-192
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339


 OAR 581  -021-0050 - 021-0075 

 Corrected 4/20/23 

 Expulsion** – JGE 
 3  -  3 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


Hood River County School District
Code: JHC
Adopted: 2/23/94
Revised/Readopted: 5/14/14; 9/26/18; 8/16/23
Orig. Code: JHC

Student Health Services and Requirements

Although the district’s primary responsibility is to educate students, the students’ health and general
welfare is also an important Board responsibility. The Board believes school programs should be
conducted in a manner that protects and enhances student and employee health and is consistent with good
health practices.

The district shall provide:

1. One registered nurse or school nurse for every 125 medically fragile students (students who may
have a life-threatening health condition and who may require immediate professional nursing
services);

2. One registered nurse or school nurse or one licensed practical nurse under the supervision of a
registered nurse or school nurse for each nursing-dependent student (students who may have an
unstable or life-threatening health condition and who may require daily, direct and continuous
professional nursing services); and

3. One registered nurse or school nurse for every 225 medically complex students (students who may
have an unstable health condition and who may require daily professional nursing services).

The district may use the most cost effective means available to meet the above requirements.

The district shall have an established prevention-oriented health services program which provides:

1. Pertinent health information on the students, as required by Oregon statutes or rules;

2. Health appraisal to include screening for possible vision or hearing problems;

3. Health counseling for students and parents, when appropriate;

4. Health care and first-aid assistance that are appropriately supervised and isolate the sick or injured
child from the student body;

5. Control and prevention of communicable diseases as required by the Oregon Health Authority,
Public Health Division, and the county health department;

6. Assistance for students in taking prescription and/or nonprescription medication according to
established district procedures;

7. Health appraisal to include screening for possible vision or hearing problems;

HR8/08/22│SL/LF Student Health Services and Requirements – JHC
1-3



8. Health counseling for students and parents, when appropriate;

9. Health care and first aid assistance that are appropriately supervised and isolates the sick or injured
child from the student body;

10. Services for students who are medically fragile or have special health care needs;

11. Integration of school health services with school health education programs.

The Board directs its district health staff to coordinate with health personnel from other public agencies in
matters pertaining to health instruction or the general health of students and employees.

In accordance with the requirements of federal law, the district recognizes its responsibility to notify
parents in advance of any nonemergency, invasive physical examination1 or screening that is required as a
condition of attendance; administered and scheduled by the school in advance; and not necessary to protect
the immediate health and safety of the student, or of other students.

Notification will be provided at least annually at the beginning of the school year or when enrolling
students for the first time in school and will include the specific or approximate dates during the school
year when such activities are scheduled or expected to be scheduled.

Procedures shall be developed and implemented to carry out this policy. All district employees will be
apprised of their responsibilities in this area. Parents shall have the opportunity to request their students be
exempt from participation in vision or hearing screening. The district will abide by those requests.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

1 The term “invasive physical examination,” as defined by law, means any medical examination that involves the exposure of
private body parts, or any act during such examination that includes incision, insertion, or injection into the body, but does not
include a hearing, vision or scoliosis screening. The term does not include any physical examination or screening that is
permitted or required by state law, including physical examinations or screenings that are permitted without parental
notification.

HR8/08/22│SL/LF Student Health Services and Requirements – JHC
2-3



ORS 329.025
ORS 336.201

ORS 336.211
OAR 581-022-2050

OAR 581-022-2220
OAR 581-022-2225

Protection of Pupil Rights, 20 U.S.C. § 1232h (2018); Student Rights in Research, Experimental Programs and Testing, 34
C.F.R. Part 98 (2022).
Every Student Succeeds Act, 20 U.S.C. § 7928 (2018).
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g (2018).

HR8/08/22│SL/LF Student Health Services and Requirements – JHC
3-3

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


Hood River County School District
Code: KL
Adopted: 4/12/07
Revised/Readopted: 1/22/14; 9/14/16; 4/25/18;

10/23/19; 3/11/20; 8/16/23
Orig. Code: 156

Public Complaints**

A parent or guardian of a student attending a school in the district, a person who resides in the district, or a
student may petition the district with a complaint. A complainant will be referred through the proper
administrative process for resolution of a complaint before investigation or action by the Board. An
exception will be a complaint against the superintendent or one that involves Board actions or Board
operations.

The complaint procedure is available at the district’s administrative office and on the home page of the
district’s website.

The Board advises that there is a process available for resolving complaints, including, but not limited to
complaints in one or more of the following areas:

1. Instruction;

2. Discipline;

3. Learning materials;

4. Compliance with State Standards;

5. Restraint and/or seclusion;

6. With a staff member; or

7. Retaliation against a student who in good faith reported information that the student believes is
evidence of a violation of state or federal law, rule or regulation.

The complainant must follow the complaint procedure as outlined in administrative regulation KL-AR -
Public Complaint Procedure.

The district may offer mediation or another alternative dispute resolution process as an option if all parties
to the complaint agree in writing to participate in such mediation or resolution.

Any complaint about school personnel, other than the superintendent, will be investigated by the
administration before consideration and action by the Board. The Board will not hear complaints against
employees in a session open to the public unless an employee requests an open session.

Complaints against the principal should be filed with the superintendent.

Public Complaints** – KL
1-3



Complaints against the superintendent should be referred to the Board chair on behalf of the Board.

Complaints against the Board as a whole or against an individual Board member should be referred to the
Board chair on behalf of the Board.

Complaints against the Board chair should be referred directly to the Board vice chair on behalf of the
Board.

A complainant must file a complaint within the later of either time limit set below, in accordance with state
law:

1. Within two years after the alleged violation or unlawful incident occurred or the complainant
discovered the alleged violation or unlawful incident. For incidents that are continuing in nature, the
time limitation must run from the date of the most recent incident; or

2. Within one year after the affected student has graduated from, moved away from or otherwise left
the district.

The superintendent will administer the complaint process, as appropriate.

If any complaint alleges a violation of Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) Chapter 581, Division 22
(Division 22 Standards), Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 339.285 - 339.303 or OAR 581-021-0550 -
581-021-0570 (Restraint and Seclusion), or ORS 659.852 (Retaliation), and the complaint is not resolved
through the complaint process, the complainant, if a student, a parent or guardian of a student attending a
school in the district or a person who resides in the district, may appeal1 the district’s final decision to the
Oregon Department of Education under OARs 581-002-0001 – 581-002-0023.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

1 An appeal must meet the criteria found in OAR 581-002-0005(1)(a).

Public Complaints** – KL
2-3



ORS 192.660
ORS 332.107

ORS 659.852
OAR 581-002-0001 - 002-0005

OAR 581-022-2370

Anderson v. Central Point Sch. Dist., 746 F.2d 505 (9th Cir. 1984).
Connick v. Myers, 461 U.S. 138 (1983).

Public Complaints** – KL
3-3

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-192
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


 
 
August 15, 2023 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
FR:  Doug Holmes, Chief Financial Officer 
RE: Annual Appointments for 2023-24 Revision / Update 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
At the beginning of each fiscal year the School Board is required to designate certain responsibilities 
and functions. The administration recommends the designations as shown in the Exhibit A. Annual 
Appointments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS: Doug Holmes, Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY  
MATERIALS:  Exhibit A. Annual Appointments for 2023-24 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends approval of the annual appointments for 

2023-24 as presented in Exhibit A.  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: I move to approve the annual appointments for 2023-24 as presented in 

Exhibit A. 
 
 
 
 
  



Exhibit A. Annual Appointments for 2023-24 
 

Chief Administrative Officer, District Clerk, and 
Custodian of District Funds (facsimile signature is 
authorized): 

Bill Newton, Interim Superintendent 

Deputy Clerk, Budget Officer, and Custodian of 
District Funds (facsimile signature is authorized): 

Doug Holmes, Chief Financial Officer  

Public Contracting Officers (general authority to 
represent the School Board for public 
contracting): 

Bill Newton, Interim Superintendent 
Doug Holmes, Chief Financial Officer 

Official Auditors: Pauly, Rogers and Company, P.C. 
Depositories: Bank of America 

U.S. Bank N.A. 
Wells Fargo Bank / Computershare Trust 
Company, N.A 
Zions Bank N.A. 
Umpqua Bank (formerly Columbia Bank) 
Local Government Investment Pool / 
Oregon State Treasury 

 



 
 
August 15, 2023 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
FR: Doug Holmes, Chief Financial Officer 
RE: Announcement of Budget Committee Vacancies 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The Budget Committee is composed of the members of the Board and an equal number of community 
members, who are District electors and are appointed by the Board. Appointed community budget 
committee members serve three-year staggered terms or serve the remaining period of the unexpired 
term for a vacant position. The following table lists community budget committee members by 
position that corresponds to the Board member zones, vacancies and terms. 
 

Position Community Members Term Expiration 
Position 1 Janice Crane, West Hood River and 

Cascade Locks 
June 30, 2025 

Position 2 Open, Hood River June 30, 2026 
Position 3 Open, Hood River June 30, 2026 
Position 4 Open, Hood River - Odell June 30, 2026 
Position 5 Brenda Bounds, Mt. Hood Parkdale June 30, 2025 
Position 6 Erica Mitchell, Hood River June 30, 2024 
Position 7 Member at Large Melissa Tokstad, Hood River June 30, 2024 

 
On behalf of the Board, the attached press release announcing the budget committee vacancies of 
positions one and five will be posted to the District website and published as a legal notice in the 
Columbia Gorge News in September. Letters will be sent to the budget committee members whose 
positions expired on June 30, 2023 thanking them for their service and inviting them to reapply.  
 
PRESENTERS: Doug Holmes, Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY  
MATERIALS:  Press Release & Budget Committee Application 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None  
  
PROPOSED MOTION: None  
  



August 15, 2023 
 
School District Budget Committee Members Needed 
 
The Hood River County School District is looking for committed citizens to join its budget committee. The 
committee of appointed community members and school board members are tasked with reviewing and 
approving the District’s budget. Vacancies are in the following regional areas: 
 
Zone 2 - 3-year term through June 2026 (Central Lower Valley) 
Zone 3 - 3-year term through June 2026 (May Street Elementary School Area) 
Zone 4 – 3-year term through June 2026 (Odell) 
 
A map of the District zone boundaries is available online at: http://www.hoodriver.k12.or.us/Page/245 
 
The budget committee, made up of seven citizens and seven school board directors, meets in May to review 
the proposed budget, take public comment and approve a budget to be reviewed by the school board. Once 
approved, it's set for final adoption by the school board. 
 
Applications are available online at the district website at: www.hoodriver.k12.or.us/Page/8274  
 
The deadline for applications is 5 p.m., September 30, 2023. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
August 15, 2023 
 
School District Budget Committee Members Needed 
 
The Hood River County School District is looking for committed citizens to join its budget 
committee. The committee of appointed community members and school board members are 
tasked with reviewing and approving the District’s budget. Vacancies are in the following 
regional areas: 
 
Zone 2 - 3-year term through June 2026 (Central Lower Valley) 
Zone 3 - 3-year term through June 2026 (May Street Elementary School Area) 
Zone 4 – 3-year term through June 2026 (Odell) 
 
A map of the District zone boundaries is available online at: 
http://www.hoodriver.k12.or.us/Page/245 
 
The budget committee, made up of seven citizens and seven school board directors, meets in 
May to review the proposed budget, take public comment and approve a budget to be reviewed 
by the school board. Once approved, it's set for final adoption by the school board. 
 
Applications are available online at the district website at: 
www.hoodriver.k12.or.us/Page/8274  
 
The deadline for applications is 5 p.m., September 30, 2023. 
 

http://www.hoodriver.k12.or.us/Page/245
http://www.hoodriver.k12.or.us/Page/8274


 
 
August 15, 2023 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FR: Doug Holmes, Chief Financial Officer 
 
RE: Approve 2024-25 Budget Calendar 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
The proposed Budget Calendar for 2024-25 outlines the desired steps for engaging our diverse community 
in annual budget decisions. The proposed budget calendar includes dates for each action required to adopt a 
budget in compliance with Oregon’s Local Budget Law (ORS 294.305 to 294.565). 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS: Doug Holmes, Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY  
MATERIALS:  Budget Calendar for 2024-25 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends approving the proposed budget calendar.  
  
PROPOSED MOTION: I move to approve the proposed budget calendar for 2024-25.  



 

2024-25 BUDGET CALENDAR 
 
July 11, 2023 Board Meeting 6:00 p.m. 

Appoint Budget Officer  

Announce Budget Committee Vacancies 
August 15, 2023 Board Meeting 5:00 p.m. 

Approve Budget Calendar 
November 8, 2023 Board Meeting 6:30 p.m. 

Appoint Budget Committee members to fill vacancies 
February/March/April 

2024 

Budget Development. District Administration will develop a 

recommended budget based on the strategic plan, student outcome 

analysis, best-practice research, and stakeholder input. 

April 3, 2024 Publish First Notice of First Budget Committee Meeting 
(5-30 days before, at least 5 days apart) (publish Wednesday, April 3) 

April 10, 2024 Publish Second Notice of First Budget Committee Meeting 
(5-30 days before, at least 5 days apart) (publish Wednesday, April 10)  
(Not required if also published on web site) 

April 30, 2024 (Tues) 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 6:00 p.m. 
Receive Budget Message, Presentation of Budget Document, Budget 

Committee Deliberations, Public Comment, Approve Tax Rates, 

Levies and Budget Appropriations 

May 7, 2024 (Tues) 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 6:00 p.m. 
Budget Committee Deliberations 
(If needed) 

May 22, 2024 Publish Financial Summaries and Notice of Budget 
Hearing 
(Publish once, 5-30 days before the hearing, publish Wednesday, May 22) 

June 5, 2024 (Wed) 

 

Public Hearing and Board Meeting 6:30 p.m. 
Adopt Budget, Appropriate Funds, and Levy Property Taxes 

July 15, 2024 Distribute copies of the Notice of Property Tax form ED-50 and 

resolutions adopting the budget by July 15 to the Hood River County 

Tax Assessor; copy of the adopted budget document by July 15 to the 

Hood River County Treasurer, ESD superintendent and State 

Superintendent of Public Instruction; and copy of the adopted 

budget document and Notice of Property Tax Levy by September 30 

to the Hood River County Clerk 
 


